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Dear Stockholder:

ational Health Realty, Inc. is a company that
is “Building with Care”. Six years ago, NHR

and AdamsPlace, the facility on the front
cover, commenced operations. Since 1997, both have
performed well. NHR’s owned asset portfolio has
seasoned while our mortgages receivable have been
repaid on, or ahead of, schedule. As mortgage
repayments occurred, we repaid debt, further
strengthening our balance sheet. AdamsPlace,
currently operating at capacity, is undergoing its first
expansion to its nursing center. “Building with Care”
is a cornerstone of both NHR and AdamsPlace.

Capital and Liquidity

On December 31, 2003, we extended our bank line
of credit one year until December 31, 2004. During
2003, we also reduced total indebtedness to
$47,820,000, a reduction of $31,700,000. As a result,
our debt to capitalization ratio declined to 29.5% at
December 31, 2003 compared to 41.0% a year earlier.
As additional prepayments of mortgage notes occur,
we expect to repay indebtedness.

Earnings

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2003
was $11,845,000 compared to $8,498,000 last year.
For the same period, net income per common share
was $1.24 basic and $1.21 diluted compared to 89
cents basic and 87 cents diluted in 2002. Funds from
operations (FFO) basic and diluted were $1.72 and
$1.68 per share, respectively, compared to $1.52 and
$1.49 per share, respectively, last year. Revenues for
the year were up slightly to $24,955,000 from
$24,773,000 last year. Earnings for the current year
include a $1,149,000 gain on the sale of real estate
while last year’s earnings included realty and loan
losses related to our Indiana properties of $4,020,000.
Excluding these items, income declined $1,822,000 as
a result of the reduction in invested assets.

Dividends

Since our inception December 31, 1997, our
dividend has remained constant at $1.33 per share.
This year, a special dividend of 16 cents per common
share was necessary to cause dividends for the year to
exceed estimated taxable income. We are pleased with
the fact that our cash flow has allowed us to pay these
dividends-even while reducing debt from $79,488,000
to $47,820,000. Although the asset sales and debt
prepayments described above will increase our
dividend payout ratio in 2004, we expect dividends to
remain stable at $1.33 under current conditions.

;oo

W. Andrew Adams, Chairman

Portfolio

We are pleased with the quality and operating
characteristics of our owned assets, which consist of
16 skilled nursing facilities, six assisted living centers
and one retirement center. We will continue to look
for ways to enhance your investment in NHR by
“Building with Care”.

Thank you for your investment in NHR.

Sincerely,

W. Andrew Adams
President, Stockholder




Financial Highlights

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31 2003 2002 2001 2000 1699
Net revenues ' $ 24955 $ 24773 $ 24651 § 25174 $ 25004
Net income 11,845 8,498 8,877 7,939 8,780
Net income per share

Basic 1.24 .89 93 .83 92

Diluted 1.21 .87 92 .83 91
Mortgages and other investments 44,595 66,562 79,518 84,132 94,336
Real estate properties, net 126,931 138,963 150,036 155,753 150,943
Total assets 182,878 214,941 234,987 243,357 249,094
Long-term debt 47,820 79,488 96,314 100,928 101,619
Total stockholder’s equity 114,242 114,476 118,571 122,422 127,147
Common shares outstanding . 9,590,588 9,570,323 9,570,323 9,570,323 9,588,823
Weighted average common shares

Basic 9,575,546 9,570,323 9,570,323 9,575,959 9,573,119

Diluted 9,757,238 9,770,730 9,697,116 9,592,814 9,605,318

Common dividends declared per share $ 1.49 $ 1.33 $ 1.33 $ 1.33 $ 1.33

National Health Realty, Inc. Page 1



Table of Contents

Part I

Item 1.
Item 2.
Item 3.
Ttem 4.

Part 11

Item 5.
Item 6.
Item 7.
Item 7a.
Item 8.
Item 9.
Item 9a.

Part I11

Item 10.
Item 11.
Item 12.
Item 13.
Item 14.
Item 15.

Part IV
Item 16.

BUSINESS ...ttt et et btttk E bR btk re b e b ere bt e b 4
PIOPEITIES ...ttt ettt ettt sttt b e et es b abe skt eaasase s sseatesee b et asseaee s e eaes s est ekt s e e s et en s e st ekt nsen b ennenrenebeneas 7
el PrOCEEAINMES .. .eveieeitietieiee ettt ettt ettt et sae bttt s et st e st eae s st eaeese e ke st e s amseeeees eaeeshenet s anneneeaneneetes 8
Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security HOIAETS .......cooviviiiiiiiieirierccnecrietresv e steresre e siee s s ave e e s sbe e 8
Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters ..........cocovvevereenrencneninnnee e 8
Selected FINANCial DALA .......covieoiiiiriirieie ettt ettt et sttt b et et e b et et n et et bt e e et e neeneer et 8
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ...........c.ccccceervecnnnenn. 9
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market RiSK........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiii et 14
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.........cccooiirieiiiiiriie e et a e s ssasesbeaeseeas 15
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure............ccccecvviennnnne. 29
Controls and PIOCEAUIES ........c.ueiiiuiriiieieietici ettt ettt b et et s eae bt b esaese et s et e basesaeeneeee 29
Directors and Executive Officers 0f REGISTIAML. .......ccociieiieriiiiiiiiicrreir e ettt e seesbeeseeas 29
EXECULIVE COTMIPENSALION ... .euiieeirieeniireeitieicateteateetientesteeteeteastatessaesteaeeemteesaasesaeseeamtestensessnnseeseseaesesteeasessenserasens 30
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters ............ 31
Certain Relationships and Related TransSactions ..........c.cceireerieieririenirrenncrtieneesreescseesieeincesesbessesbesseenseseesesnenne 32
Controls and ProCEAUIES ........cc.ciiiiiiiiiiiii ettt bbbt bt 34
Principal Accountant FEes and SEIVICES .....c.c.vvieiriiriiiniereeir ettt ettt sre sttt ereesbeeseeaneenreee s 35
Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K .......cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiei e 35

Page 2 National Health Realty, Inc.




SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
[(X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT

OF 1934 [NO FEE REQUIRED] For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003
OR
[ 1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE

ACT OF 1934 [NO FEE REQUIREDY] For the transition period from to

Commission file number 333-37173
4 4 4 4 y
NATIONAL HEALTH REALTY, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Maryland 52-2059888

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or (LR.S. Employer Identification Number)
organization)

100 Vine Street, Suite 1402, Murfreesboro, Tennessee 37130

(Address of principal executive offices)
(Zip Code)

(615) 890-2020
(Company’s telephone number including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Same

=3

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes _ X No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not
be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III
of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer. Yes _X  No

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by nonaffiliates of the registrant was $116,223,395 as of June 30, 2003. The
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding as of February 1, 2004 was 9,590,588.
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PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

National Health Realty, Inc. (NHR) is a Maryland corporation formed during 1997 and in operation since January 1, 1998. NHR,
through its subsidiary NHR/OP, L.P. (the Operating Partnership) currently owns 16 licensed skilled nursing facilities, six assisted liv-
ing facilities and one independent living center (the Health Care Facilities). We additionally own first mortgage secured promissory
notes with an outstanding balance of $44.6 million (the Notes). The Health Care Facilities and the Notes were originally acquired on
December 31, 1997 from our then sole owner National HealthCare Corporation (NHC), {formerly National HealthCare L.P). NHR
leases the Healthcare Facilities (the Leases), 14 properties to NHC and nine properties to nine separate Florida corporations. The Leases
covering the Healthcare Facilities are “triple net” leases, meaning the tenant shall pay all charges and expenses in connection with the
leased property throughout the term of the lease. NHR’s revenues are derived primarily from the interest and principal payments on the
Notes and from rent payments, primarily from NHC, under the Leases.

Fifteen of the Notes (representing approximately $30.6 million in principal amount at December 31, 2003 and collateralized with
six nursing facilities) are first mortgage notes due from Florida Convalescent Centers, Inc. or an affiliate (FCC). The six nursing facil-
ities were managed by NHC through July 31, 1999. Since August 1, 1999, the six centers have been leased by FCC to third parties: first
to Integrated Health Services, Inc. (IHS) a publicly owned long term care company which filed for bankruptcy on February 2, 2000 and
since the second quarter of 2002 to Schwartzberg Associates, a private multi-state long-term care company. Approximately $21.9 mil-
lion of second mortgages were prepaid by FCC to NHR on November 2, 2003. Proceeds from the prepayments were used by NHR to
pay down its credit facility. The FCC Notes remaining outstanding bear interest at 10.25% and are due in 2004, primarily in October.
In December 2003, two FCC Notes previously sold at par by NHR to raise cash were repurchased at par for $9,411,000. Proceeds to
purchase the notes were obtained through borrowings from NHC.

The remaining Notes (representing approximately $14.0 million in principal amount at December 31, 2003) are secured by nursing
facilities and separate makers and guarantors. During 2000, we foreclosed on two of the Notes and obtained title to four nursing facil-
ities. One of these facilities was closed and the remaining three were sold effective January 1, 2001 to a third party for the outstanding
balance of the original notes on the four properties at the same rate of interest. The purchaser paid no down payment, and we reported
all current payments as a deposit until November, 2003 when the amount collected became adequate to recognize the sale. The sale
recognition resulted in recording a mortgage note receivable and reporting a gain on sale of real estate of approximately $1.1 million.
In December 2003, one note receivable previously sold at par by NHR to raise cash was repurchased at par for $5,526,000. Proceeds
to purchase the note receivable were obtained through borrowings from NHC.

At our formation, we entered into an Advisory, Administrative Services and Facilities Agreement with NHC pursuant to which NHC
provides us with investment advice, office space and personnel. This agreement also puts certain limitations on our investment oppor-
tunities. See “Investment and Other Policies of NHR” below.

Credit Facility

Our credit facility of $31.2 million was scheduled to mature in December 2003 but was extended for one year. The extended credit
facility matures December 31, 2004 and bears interest at variable rates, currently at the Eurodollar rate plus 2.00% (3.12% at December
31, 2003). In November 2003, approximately $22.0 million of principal was repaid. Proceeds to repay the principal were obtained from
the prepayment of FCC mortgage notes receivable.
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Investment and Other Policies of NHR

General. Our investment objectives are: (i) to provide current income for distribution to stockholders, (ii) to provide the opportunity
for additional returns to investors by participating in any increase in the operating revenues of our leased properties; (iii) to provide the
opportunity to realize capital growth resulting from appreciation, if any, in the value of our portfolio properties, and (iv) to preserve and
protect stockholder’s capital. We can offer no assurance that these objectives will be realized.

Advisory Agreement. We have contracted for our management with NHC. The NHR Advisory Agreement provides that we will not,
without the prior approval of NHI, be actively or passively engaged in the pursuit of additional investment opportunities until the ear-
lier of the termination of the Advisory Agreement or such time as NHC is no longer actively engaged as investment advisor to NHL
For its services, NHC is entitled to annual compensation of the greater of 2% of our gross consolidated revenues or the actual expense
incurred by NHC. The actual amount paid to NHC in 2003 was $476,000. Either party may terminate the Advisory Agreement on 90
days notice.

Objective, Policies and Competitive Restrictions. We were organized to own the Healthcare Facilities and Notes. Because of the
competitive restrictions contained in the Advisory Agreement, we do not currently intend to seek further health care-related investment
opportunities or to provide lease or mortgage financing for such investments. We expect to continue to engage in transactions with
NHC, but do not anticipate purchasing from, leasing to or financing other operations. Subject to the Advisory Agreement, the Board of
Directors may alter our investment policies if they determine that such a change is in the best interests of the Company and our stock-
holders. The methods of implementing our investment policies may vary as new investment and financing techniques are developed or
for other reasons.

NHC Master Agreement to Lease

The Master Agreement to Lease (the “Master Agreement”) with NHC regarding the Health Care Facilities sets forth terms and
conditions applicable to all leases entered into by and between NHC and the Company (the “Leases”). The Leases are for an initial term
expiring on December 31, 2007 with two five year renewal options at the election of NHC which allow for the renewal of the leases
on an “all or nothing” basis. During the initial term and the first and second renewal terms (if applicable), NHC is obligated to pay
annual base rent plus additional percentage rent on a quarterly basis. NHR recognized $1,128,000 of percentage rent from NHC during
2003.

The Master Agreement is a “triple net lease”, under which NHC is responsible to pay all taxes, utilities, insurance premium costs,
repairs (including structural portions of the buildings, and other charges relating to the ownership and operation of the Health Care
Facilities). NHC is also obligated to indemnify and hold harmless NHR from all claims resulting from the use and occupancy of each
Health Care Facility by NHC or persons claiming under NHC and related activities, as well as to indemnify us against all costs related
to any release, discovery, cleanup and removal of hazardous substances or materials or other environmental responsibility with respect
to the Health Care Facilities.

During 2000, NHC terminated, with our consent, the individual healthcare facility leases on nine healthcare facilities in Florida. We
then re-leased these nine healthcare centers to separate Florida corporations not owned or controlled by NHC. NHC’s obligations to us
on these properties remain in full force and effect, even though operational control has been transferred. Since October 1, 2000, the nine
separate Florida corporations have made all required lease payments to NHR, and NHC has not been required to make any lease pay-
ments with respect to those nine healthcare centers.

Indiana Properties

During 2000, we obtained title by foreclosure to four properties on which we previously had mortgage notes receivable. We imme-
diately entered into new leases for three of the facilities, but the fourth facility was closed. Effective January 1, 2001 the three facili-
ties were sold to Health Services Management of Indiana, LLC (HSMI). The principal officer of the entity that currently owns the three
properties was also the principal officer of the company which owned the properties prior to the foreclosure.

We accounted for the sale of the three facilities under the deposit method in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 66. Consistent with the deposit method, we initially did not record the sale of the assets and con-
tinued to record depreciation expense each period. Any cash received from the buyer (which totaled $3,092,000 as of October 31, 2003)
was reported as a deposit on real estate properties sold awaiting the time the down payment and continuing investment criteria of SFAS
66 were met.

Effective November 1, 2003, the criteria of SFAS 66 were met. Therefore, the sale of the real estate properties was recorded result-
ing in a gain on sale of real estate of approximately $1,149,000. The sale of the assets resulted in recording mortgage notes receivable
of approximately $3,740,000.
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Advisory Agreement

At our inception we entered into an agreement with NHC as “Advisor” under which NHC provides management and advisory serv-
ices to us during the term of the Advisory Agreement. We believe the Advisory Agreement benefits us by providing us access to NHC’s
extensive experience in the ownership and management of long-term care facilities and retirement centers. Under the Advisory
Agreement, we engaged NHC 1o use its best efforts (a) to present to us a continuing and suitable investment program consistent with
our investment policies adopted by the Board of Directors from time to time; (b) to manage our day-to-day affairs and operations; and
(c) to provide administrative services and facilities appropriate for such management. In performing its obligations under the Advisory
Agreement, NHC is subject to the supervision of and policies established by our Board of Directors.

The Advisory Agreement is for a stated term which expired December 31, 2003 and thereafter from year to year unless earlier ter-
minated. Either party may terminate the Advisory Agreement at any time on 90 days written notice, and we may terminate the Advisory
Agreement for cause at any time. For its services under the Advisory Agreement, the Advisor is entitled to annual compensation of the
greater of 2% of NHR’s gross consolidated revenues or the actual expense incurred by NHC. The actual amounts paid to NHC in 2003,
2002 and 2001 were $476,000, $493,000 and $504,000, respectively.

Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, NHC manages our day-to-day affairs and provides all such services through its personnel. The
Advisory Agreement provides that without regard to the amount of compensation received by NHC under the Advisory Agreement,
NHC shall pay all expenses in performing its obligations including the employment expenses of the officers and directors and person-
nel of NHC providing services to us. The Advisory Agreement further provides that we shall pay the expenses incurred with respect to
and allocable to the prudent operation and business of NHR including any fees, salaries, and other employment costs, taxes and
expenses paid to our directors, officers and employees who are not also employees of NHC. Currently, other than the directors who are
not employees of NHC, we do not have any officers or employees who are not also employees of NHC. Of our executive officers, Mr.
W. Andrew Adams, Mr. Robert G. Adams, Ms. Charlotte A. Swafford and Mr. Donald K. Daniel are employees of NHC; Mr. LaRoche
was an employee until his retirement from management responsibilities in May 2002, but remains a corporate officer for us. All of their
renumeration and employment costs are paid by NHC, although a portion may be allocated for their services to NHR.

Federal Income Tax

We believe that we have operated our business so as to qualify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the Code) and we intend to continue to operate in such a manner. REITS are subject to highly complex rules
governing ownership and relationships with tenants which can be inadvertently transgressed; thus no assurance can be given that we
will be able to qualify at all times. If we qualify as a REIT, we will generally not be subject to federal corporate income taxes on our
net income that is currently distributed to our stockholders. This treatment substantially eliminates the “double taxation” (at the corpo-
rate and stockholder levels) that typically applies to corporate dividends.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Healthcare Facilities

The following table includes certain information regarding Healthcare Facilities which are owned and leased:

Net Book Base
No. of Value at Annual
Name of Facility Location Beds Dec. 31, 2003 Rent (M
Long-Term Care Centers
The Aristocrat Naples, FL. 60 $4,178,371 $ 96,000
NHC HealthCare Clinton, SC 131 2,475,364 690,991
The Health Center at Coconut Creek Coconut Creek, FL 120 8,102,019 775,000
The Health Center of Daytona Beach Daytona Beach, FL 60 4,786,970 380,000
NHC HealthCare Farragut, TN 60 6,602,641 669,414
NHC HealthCare, Garden City Murrells Inlet, SC 88 4,051,592 670,928
NHC HealthCare Greenville, SC 176 3,689,718 1,239,689
NHC HealthCare Lexington, SC 120 4,889,169 867,828
NHC HealthCare Mauldin, SC 120 6,251,461 524,005
AdamsPlace Murfreesboro, TN 60 4,376,035 564,755
The Imperial Health Care Center Naples, FL 113 4,781,619 570,000
NHC HealthCare North Augusta, SC 132 3,524,174 1,081,625
The Health Center of Windermere Orlando, FL 120 6,145,039 535,000
NHC HealthCare, Parklane Columbia, SC 120 5,910,194 787,808
Charlotte Harbor Health Care Center Port Charlotte, FL 180 6,350,271 1,010,000
NHC HealthCare West Plains, MO 120 2,687,809 669,901
Assisted Living Facilities
The Place at Vero Beach Vero Beach, FL 84 7,920,125 1,187,000
NHC Place/Anniston Anniston, AL 68 3,966,795 344,147
AdamsPlace Murfreesboro, TN 84 4,618,174 56,349
The Place at Merritt Island Merritt Island, FL 84 5,811,715 765,000
The Place at Stuart Stuart, FL 84 5,178,197 751,000
NHC Place/Farragut Farragut, TN 84 6,770,061 225,965
Retirement Center
AdamsPlace Murfreesboro, TN 58 13,863,743 1,497,540

() Additional rent equal to three percent (3%) of the increase in gross revenues (calculated on a quarterly basis) of the HealthCare
Facilities commenced in 2000. All leases are triple net leases.

Mortgage Notes. Currently we own approximately 23 mortgage notes representing approximately $44.6 million loaned to the own-
ers of approximately 11 nursing homes. The loans were utilized by the initial owners to acquire land, then construct and equip the nurs-
ing homes or to provide working capital. The mortgage notes are secured by mortgages on each of the facilities. Certain of our mort-
gage notes (representing approximately $30.6 million of the principal amount) are due from FCC or affiliates. The FCC notes bear inter-
est at 10.25% and are due in 2004. The balance of the mortgage notes are secured by separate makers, guarantors and properties.

Effective December 31, 2002, we sold to NHI at par three mortgage notes receivable secured by three long-term health care facili-
ties in Florida. We received cash in the amount of $15,717,000. NHR maintained the right to repurchase the notes at par after July 1,
2003 and NHI maintained the right to resell the notes to NHR at par beginning January 2, 2004 or require us to make the debt service
payments required under the notes. As a result of the repurchase and put options, consistent with the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 140 “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of
Liabilities” (SFAS 140), we accounted for the sale of the notes receivable to NHI as a borrowing from NHI rather than a sale of the
notes. Effective December 31, 2003, NHR exercised its right to repurchase at par the notes from NHI for approximately $14,937,000.
Consequently, the borrowing from NHI is not recognized on our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2003.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not subject to any significant pending litigation. The HealthCare Facilities are subject to claims and lawsuits in the ordinary
course of business. Our lessees and mortgagees have indemnified us against all liabilities arising from the operation of the Health Care
Facilities, and also indemnify us against environmental or title problems affecting the real estate underlying such facilities. While there
are lawsuits pending against certain of the mortgagees and/or lessees of the Health Care Facilities, management believes that the ulti-
mate resolution of all pending proceedings will have no material adverse effect on us or our operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

The annual meeting of the shareholders was held on April 24, 2003, and the results were included in the March 31, 2003, Form
10-Q filed with the SEC on May 7, 2003. '

PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

In order to qualify for the beneficial tax treatment accorded to a REIT, we must make quarterly distributions to holders of our
Common Stock equal on an annual basis to at least 90% of our REIT taxable income (excluding net capital gains), as defined in the
Code. Cash available for distribution to our stockholders is primarily derived from interest payments received on its mortgages and from
rental payments received under our leases. All distributions will be made by us at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will
depend on our cash flow and earnings, our financial condition, bank covenants and such other factors as the Board of Directors deems
relevant. Our REIT taxable income is calculated without reference to our cash flow. Therefore, under certain circumstances, we may
not have received cash sufficient to pay our required distributions.

The shares are listed on the American Stock Exchange (AMEX) under the symbol “NHR”. On February 11, 2004 the last reported
sale price for the Common Stock on the AMEX was $20.40. As of December 31, 2003 we had approximately 4,344 shareholders, of
which approximately 1,844 are holders of record with the balance indicated by security listing positions.

High and low stock prices and dividends for 2003 and 2002 were:

2003 2002
Cash Cash
Sales Price Dividends Sales Price Dividends
Quarter Ended High Low Declared High Low Declared
March 31 $ 15.050 $ 13.320 $ 3325 $ 17.250 $ 14.900 $ 3325
June 30 16.180 13.320 3325 19.300 16.050 3325
September 30 18.180 14.360 3325 19.250 11.750 3325
December 31 20.040 14.950 4925 16.120 13.500 3325
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands, except share amounts)
Year Ended December 31 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Net revenues $ 24955 $ 24,773 $ 24,651 $ 25174 $ 25,004
Net income 11,845 8,498 8,877 7,939 8,780
Net income per share
Basic 1.24 .89 93 .83 92
Diluted 1.21 .87 92 .83 91
Mortgages & other investments 44,595 65,562 79,518 84,132 94,336
Real estate properties, net 126,931 138,963 150,036 155,753 150,943
Total assets 182,878 214,941 234,987 243,357 249,094
Long term debt 47,820 - 79,488 96,314 100,928 101,619
Total stockholders’ equity 114,242 114,476 118,571 122,422 127,147
Common shares outstanding 9,590,588 9,570,323 9,570,323 9,570,323 9,588,823
Weighted average common shares
Basic 9,575,546 9,570,323 9,570,323 9,575,959 9,573,119
Diluted 9,757,238 9,770,730 9,697,116 9,592,814 9,605,318
Common dividends declared per share $ 1.49 $ 1.33 $ 1.33 $ 1.33 $ 1.33
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

National Health Realty, Inc. (NHR or the Company) is a real estate investment trust (REIT) that began operations on January 1, 1998.
Currently NHR, through its subsidiary NHR/OP, L.P. (the Operating Partnership), owns the real estate of 23 health care facilities,
including 16 licensed skilled nursing facilities, six assisted living facilities and one independent living center (the Health Care
Facilities), and owns 23 first promissory notes with principal balances totaling $44,595,000 (the Notes) at December 31, 2003 and
secured by the real property of health care facilities.

Competitive Restrictions

‘We have an advisory services agreement with National HealthCare Corporation (NHC) pursuant to which NHC will provide us with
investment advice, office space and personnel. NHC owns or manages 76 long-term care health care facilities with 9,332 beds in 11
states. NHC is the primary tenant of ten licensed skilled nursing facilities, six assisted living facilities and one independent living cen-
ter owned by NHR. The advisory services agreement provides that prior to the earlier to occur of (i) the termination of the advisory
agreement for any reason or (ii) NHC ceasing to be actively engaged as the investment advisor for National Health Investors, Inc.
(NHI), we will not (without the prior approval of NHI) transact real estate leasing or financing business with any party, person, com-
pany or firm other than NHC. It is the intent of the foregoing restriction that we will not be actively or passively engaged in the pursuit
of additional investment opportunities, but rather we will focus upon our capacities as landlord and note holder of those certain assets
conveyed to us by NHC’s predecessor.

Areas of Focus

In November 2003, we received a prepayment of approximately $22 million on our 10.25% notes receivable from FCC. We used
the proceeds to reduce our bank credit facility which bore interest at 3.17% at December 31, 2003. Our cash flow was reduced by the
approximate 7% spread in these interest rates. This reduction in cash flow will be offset in part by our December 31, 2003 purchase of
approximately $15 million of notes receivable which eamn an average rate of 8.68%. We borrowed funds at approximately 4.00% to pur-
chase the $15 million of notes receivable.

Furtherinore, the majority of our $31 million of 10.25% notes receivable from FCC mature on October 31, 2004 and may be pre-
paid without penalty before that date. If and when these notes receivable are paid, the proceeds will be applied to our $31 million line
of credit which currently matures on December 31, 2004 and to the $15 million note payable mentioned in the previous paragraph. Our
cash flows would again be reduced by the spread between the yield on the mortgages receivable and the cost of debt. However, no div-
idend reductions are expected in the near future.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires us
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and lia-
bilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates and cause our reported net income to vary significantly from period to period.

Our significant accounting policies and the associated estimates and the issues which impact these estimates are as follows:
Revenue Recognition - Mortgage Interest and Rental Income

We collect interest and rent from our customers. Generally our policy is to recognize revenues on an accrual basis as earned.
However, we may in the future determine that, based on insufficient historical collections and the lack of expected future collections,
revenue for interest or rent is not realizable. For any such nonperforming investments, our policy is to recognize interest or rental
income only in the period when payments are received. If conclusions as to the realizibility of revenue change, our revenues could vary
significantly from period to period.

Valuations of and Impairments to Our Investments

Since the passage of the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 affecting SNFs January 1999, the long-term care industry has experienced
material reductions in government and private insurance reimbursement. Some legislative relief was granted in 2000 and 2001 as a
result of the Balanced Budget Refinement Act of 1999, but some of those add-on provisions expired October 1, 2002 materially reduc-
ing reimbursement. Effective October 1, 2003, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) increased reimbursement for
Medicare Part A by 3.26% in addition to the annual inflationary increase of 3%. No material changes to reimbursement are expected
until CMS refines the current RUG III case-mix methodology. The long-term health care industry has also experienced a dramatic
increase in professional liability claims and in the cost of insurance to cover such claims. These factors have combined to cause a num-
ber of bankruptcy filings, bankruptcy court rulings and court judgments about refinancing which have affected some of our lessees and
mortgagees.
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Decisions about valuations and impairments of our investments require significant judgements and estimates on the part of man-
agement. We monitor the liquidity and credit worthiness of our tenants and borrowers on an on-going basis. For real estate properties,
the need to recognize an impairment is evaluated on a property by property basis in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS 144). Recognition of an impairment is
based upon estimated future cash flows from a property compared to the carrying value of the property. For notes receivable, impair-
ment recognition is based upon an evaluation of the estimated collectibility of loan payments on a specific loan basis in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - An Amendment of FASB
Statements No. 5 and 15”. While we believe that the carrying amounts of our properties and notes receivable are realizable, it is possi-
ble that future events could require us to make significant adjustments or revisions to these estimates.

REIT Status and Taxes

We believe that we have operated our business so as to qualify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and we intend to continue to operate in such a manner, but no assurance can be given that we
will be able to qualify at all times. If we qualify as a REIT, we will generally not be subject to federal corporate income taxes on our
net income that is currently distributed to its stockholders. This treatment substantially eliminates the “double taxation” (at the corpo-
rate and stockholder levels) that typically applies to corporate dividends. Our failure to continue to qualify under the applicable REIT
qualification rules and regulations would cause us to owe state and federal income taxes and would have a material adverse impact on
our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

At year end, our debt as a percentage of total liabilities and capital was 29.5%. This debt of $47,820,000 includes our credit facility
debt with a principal amount of $31,175,000 and a promissory note payable to NHC with a principal amount of $14,922,000. The credit
facility bears interest at variable rates, currently at the Eurodollar rate plus 2.0% (3.12% at December 31, 2003). The promissory note
bears interest at the 30 day LIBOR plus 2.25% with a floor of 4.00%. The $31 million credit facility matures December 31, 2004 and
the $15 million promissory note matures December 31, 2005.

In order to address the December 31, 2004 maturity of our $31 million credit facility, we plan to obtain proceeds from note receiv-
able maturities due us (see FCC Notes below), from the refinancing of certain assets through first mortgage notes with community
banks, and from refinancing with our existing lenders. Although we believe that we will be successful in refinancing our obligations,
no assurance can be given in this regard. Our cash flows from operating activities will not be adequate to meet these entire obligations.
The inability to obtain adequate refinancing prior to December 31, 2004 would have a material adverse effect on our financial position,
results of operation and cash flows.

Leases

We lease our 23 health care facilities to various lessees: 14 properties are leased to NHC, and nine properties that were previously
leased to NHC are leased to nine separate lessees not related to NHC. With respect to these nine properties, NHC remains obligated
under its master lease agreement and continues to remain obligated to make the lease payments to us. Lease payments made to us from
the new lessees are credited against NHC’s overall rent obligation. At December 31, 2003, all payments are current. Our leases with
NHC have initial ten year terms with provisions for two five year renewal terms at the same terms as the original lease. Our leases with
the nine separate lessees have initial five year terms with provisions for two five year renewal terms for which the base lease payments
must be negotiated on each renewal.

Transfer of Notes Receivable to NHI

Effective December 31, 2002, we sold at par three mortgage notes receivable for $15,717,000 to NHI. We received cash from NHI
equal to our carrying amount. As the result of the repurchase and put options included in the sale agreement, consistent with the provi-
sions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities” (SFAS 140), we accounted for the transfer of notes receivable to NHI as a borrowing from NHI rather
than as a sale of the notes. Effective December 31, 2003, NHR exercised its right to repurchase the notes at par for approximately
$14,937,000 from NHI. Consequently, the borrowing from NHI is not recognized on our consolidated balance sheet as of December
31, 2003. The notes bear interest at a blended floating rate which was 8.68% on December 31, 2003. Funds to purchase the notes were
borrowed from NHC at a floating rate with a floor of 4.00%. The rate was 4.00% on December 31, 2003.

FCC Notes

Of the $45,595,000 of mortgage and other notes receivable recorded on our balance sheet at December 31, 2003, $30,628,000 is due
from Florida Convalescent Centers, Inc. (FCC) of Sarasota, Florida. The FCC notes bear interest at 10.25% and substantially all of the
notes mature October 31, 2004, Approximately $21,982,000 of FCC notes were prepaid November 2, 2003. The proceeds of the pre-
payments were used to pay down our credit facility. The balance of the FCC notes may be prepaid without penalty. If repayment occurs,
our existing line of credit requires the repayments to be used to reduce our bank debt. In the event that we use any prepayments to pay
down existing debt, a reduction of our cash flow will result. However, no dividend reductions are expected in the near future.
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Effective July 31, 1999, the FCC centers securing the FCC notes were leased to Integrated Health Systems, Inc. (IHS), which filed
for bankruptcy protection on February 2, 2000. Pursuant to court order, the IHS lease was terminated and the FCC centers re-leased to
Schwartzberg Associates, a private multi-state long-term care company, during the second quarter of 2002. The ability of FCC to serv-
ice the mortgage notes held by us is dependent on Schwartzberg Associates’ ability to make its lease payments to FCC or upon FCC’s
ability to refinance the notes payable to us upon maturity. Our payments from FCC are current as of December 31, 2003.

HSMI Sale

Effective January 1, 2001, we sold all of the real estate and equipment of the three long-term health care centers under lease to the
lessee, Health Services Management of Indiana, LLC (HSMI). Consideration for the sale and assumption of the $1,630,000 first mort-
gage and the properties is in the form of new mortgage notes in the total amount of $12,029,000. We accounted for this transaction
under the deposit method in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 66, “Accounting for
Sales of Real Estate” (SFAS 66). Consistent with the deposit method, we did not initially record the sale of the assets and we contin-
ued to record depreciation expense related to the assets. Cash received from the buyer (which since the sale totaled $3,092,000 as of
October 31, 2003) was reported as a deposit on real estate properties sold until the period in which the down payment and continuing
investment criteria of SFAS 66 were met, at which time we would account for the sale under the full accrual method.

During 2002, we concluded that based on our impairment analysis in accordance with Statement of Accounting Standards No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS 144) and based on certain 2002 events, these real estate
properties required write-downs in the amount of $4,288,000. As such, write-downs of $1,000,000 and $3,288,000 were recorded dur-
ing the first and fourth quarters of 2002, respectively.

Effective November 1, 2003, the initial and continuing investment criteria of SFAS 66 were met. Therefore, the sale of the real estate
properties was recorded resulting in a gain on the sale of real estate of approximately $1,149,000. The sale of the assets resulted in
recording a mortgage notes receivable of approximately $3,740,000.

Sources and Uses of Funds

Our leasing and mortgage services generated net cash from operating activities during 2003 in the amount of $19,083,000 compared
to $20,799,000 in the prior period. Net cash from operating activities generally includes net income plus non-cash expenses, such as
depreciation and amortization and provisions for realty and loan losses, if any, and non-cash gains on sales of real estate, if any, and
working capital changes. The year to year decrease is due primarily to reduced mortgage interest income and increased interest expense.

Our investing activities provided $26,004,000 of cash flows in 2003 compared to $12,065,000 in 2002. Collections and sales of mort-
gage notes receivable totaled $24,707,000 in 2003 compared to $14,224,000 in 2002. Included in these collections are $21,982,000 of
prepayments of mortgage notes receivable in 2003 compared to prepayment of $10,737,000 in 2002.

Deposits on real estate properties sold provided $1,270,000 of cash flow this year compared to $1,324,000 in the prior year. Cash
flows used in investing activities during 2002 include an investment in marketable securities of $3,483,000 compared to no investment
in marketable securities in the current year.

Net cash used in financing activities totaled $45,801,000 in 2003 compared to $31,604,000 in 2002. Cash flows provided from bor-
rowings included $14,922,000 (from NHC) in 2003 compared to $15,717,000 (from NHI) in 2002. Cash flows from the sale of com-
mon stock were $212,000 in 2003 and none in 2002.

Payments on debt were $46,590,000 in 2003 compared to $32,543,000 of payments on debt last year. Cash flows used in financing
activities included $12,730,000 to pay dividends to stockholders ($12,728,000 last year), $1,615,000 to pay cash distributions to minor-
ity partners of our operating partnership ($1,618,000 last year), and $432,000 to payment of financing costs in the prior year (none in
the current year).

Commitments

We intend to pay quarterly distributions to our stockholders in an amount at least sufficient to satisfy the distribution requirements
of a real estate investment trust. Such requirements necessitate that at least 90% of our taxable income be distributed annually. The pri-
mary source for distributions will be rental and interest income we earn on the real property and mortgage notes receivable. Regular
dividends in the amount of $1.33 and a special dividend in the amount of $.16 were declared for payment during 2003.

During the fourth quarter of 2001, NHC, as the holder of certain promissory notes made by National Health Corporation and previ-
ously guaranteed in part by us, released our guarantee. Therefore, there is no longer any potential liability on our part for any default
by National or NHC on any of their outstanding debt.

Our contractual cash obligations for periods subsequent to December 31, 2003 are as follows:

Less Than After
(in thousands) Total One Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt $ 47,820 $ 32,036 $ 15,784 $ — $ —
Total Contractual Cash Obligations $ 47,820 $ 32,036 $ 15,784 3 —_ $ —

We expect that current cash on hand, marketable securities, short-term notes receivable, operating cash flows, and as needed, our
borrowing capacity will be adequate to finance our operating and financing requirements for 2004 and 2005.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2003 is $11,845,000 versus $8,498,000 for the same period in 2002, an increase of
39.4%. Diluted earnings per common share increased 34 cents or 39.1% to $1.21 in the 2003 period from 87 cents in the 2002 period.

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003 increased $182,000 or .7% to $24,955,000 from $24,773,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2002. Revenues from rental income increased $266,000 or 1.6% when compared to the same period in 2002.
Revenues from mortgage interest decreased $1,456,000 or 18.8% in 2003 as compared to the same period in 2002, Gain on sale of real
estate increased $1,149,000.

The increase in rental income is due primarily to the recognition of $324,000 of additional percentage rent. Percentage rent is cal-
culated as 3% of the amount by which gross revenues of each leased health care facility in each quarter of each year after 1999 exceed
the gross revenues of such health care facility in the applicable quarter of 1999.

The decrease in mortgage interest income is the result of lower balances of notes receivable. We received prepayments on mortgages
receivable totaling $21,982,000 in November 2003 and totaling $10,737,000 in December 2002. Mortgage interest income decreased
also because of reductions in the principal of the mortgage notes receivable due to regular monthly amortization. The gain on sale of
real estate is the result of recording the sale of Indiana properties effective November 1, 2003.

Total expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003 decreased $3,587,000 or 23.6% to $11,612,000 from $15,199,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2002. Interest expense increased $668,000 or 20.1% in 2003 as compared to the 2002 period. Depreciation of real
estate decreased $463,000 or 6.8%. General and administrative costs increased $17,000 or 2.1%. Realty and loan losses, $0 in the cur-
rent year, were $4,020,000 in the prior year.

Interest expense increased due primarily to the recognition of interest expense on a $14,937.000 obligation to NHI which started in
December 2002, offset by reduced interest expenses on the credit facility. The reduced interest on the credit facility was caused by pay-
downs in December 2002 and December 2003 in the amounts of $25 million and $22 million, respectively. The reduction of interest on
the credit facility was offset in part due to an increased rate effective January 1, 2002.

During 2002, we concluded that based on our Statement of Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS 144) impairment analysis and on certain events, certain real estate properties required write-
downs in the net book value of $4,288,000. Write-downs of $1,000,000 and $3,288,000 were recorded during the first and fourth quar-
ters of 2002, respectively. It is possible that additional events could occur that, if adverse to NHR, would indicate a further impairment
of the net carrying amount of these real estate properties. If such adverse events occur, we will record additional losses in the period
the events occur or become known.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 is $8,498,000 versus $8,877,000 for the same period in 2001, a decrease of 4.3%.
Diluted earnings per common share decreased S cents or 5.4% to 87 cents in the 2002 period from 92 cents in the 2001 period.

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased $122,000 or .5% to $24,773,000 from $24,651,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2001. Revenues from rental income increased $437,000 or 2.7% when compared to the same period in 2001.
Revenues from mortgage interest decreased $449,000 or 5.5% in 2002 as compared to the same period in 2001.

The increase in rental income is due primarily to the recognition of $379,000 of percentage rent and due to receipt of $58,000 of
past due rent receivable from a prior year. Percentage rent is calculated as 3% of the amount by which gross revenues of each leased
health care facility in each quarter of each year after 1999 exceed the gross revenues of such health care facility in the applicable
quarter of 1999.

The decrease in mortgage interest income resulted from reductions in the principal of the mortgage notes receivable.

Total expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased $552,000 or 3.8% to $15,199,000 from $14,647,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2001. Interest expense decreased $2,758,000 or 45.3% in 2002 as compared to the 2001 period. Depreciation of
real estate decreased $608,000 or 8.2%. General and administrative costs decreased $47,000 or 5.5%. Realty and loan losses increased
$3,752,000.

Interest expense decreased due to a decrease in the interest rate of variable rate debt compared to a year ago and, to a lesser extent,
due to payments of principal on long-term debt.

We concluded that based on our Statement of Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets” (SFAS 144) impairment analysis and on certain 2002 events, certain real estate properties required write-downs in the
net book value of $4,288,000. Write-downs of $1,000,000 and $3,288,000 were recorded during the first and fourth quarters of 2002,
respectively. We believe that the carrying amount of these assets of $5,866,000 at December 31, 2002 is realizable. It is possible that
additional events could occur that, if adverse to NHR, would indicate a further impairment of the net carrying amount of these real estate
properties. If such adverse events occur, we will record additional losses in the period the events occur or become known.

During 2002, we recovered $268,000 principal and accrued interest which had been written off in the prior year.
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FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS

We have adopted the definition of Funds From Operations (“FFO”) prescribed by the National Association of Real Estate Investment
Trusts (“NAREIT”) October 1999 White Paper as amended April 1 2002. Accordingly, FFO is defined as net income (loss) applicable
to common stockholders (computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles “GAAP”) excluding gains (or losses)
from sales of property, plus depreciation of real property and after investments for unconsolidated entities in which a REIT holds an
interest. FFO should not be considered as an alternative to net income or any other GAAP measurement of performance as an indica-
tor of operating performance or as an alternative to cash flows form operations, investing or financing activities as a measure of lig-
uidity. We view FFO as a measure of operating performance and believe that FFO is helpful in evaluating a real estate investment port-
folio’s overall performance considering the fact that historical cost accounting implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets
diminishes predictably over time.

In October 2003, NAREIT informed its member companies that the SEC has taken the position that asset impairment charges should
not be excluded in calculating FFO. Previously, the SEC accepted NAREIT’s view that impairment charges are effectively an early
recognition of an expected loss on an impending sale of property and thus should be excluded from FFO similar to other gains and
losses on sales. However, the SEC’s current interpretation is that recurring impairment charges on real property are not an appropriate
adjustment. Based on the SEC’s interpretation, we have restated our prior year FFO amounts to exclude impairment charges. This mod-
ification of FFO does not impact our net income.

The following table reconciles net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders to funds from (to) operations applicable to com-
mon stockholders:

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31 2003 2002 2001
Net income $ 11,845 $ 8,498 $ 8877
Adjustments:
Real estate depreciation 6,322 6,785 7,393
Gain on sale of real estate (1,149) — —
Minority interest in NHR/OP, LP share of add back for
real estate related depreciation and gain on sale of real estate (581) (761) (830)
Funds from operations applicable to common stockholders $ 16,437 $ 14,522 $ 15,440
Basic funds from operations per share $ 1.72 $ 1.52 $ 1.61
Diluted funds from operations per share ) 1.68 $ 1.49 $ 1.59
Weighted average shares:
Basic 9,575,546 9,570,323 9,570,323
Diluted 9,757,238 9,770,370 9,697,116

FUTURE RENTAL AND MORTGAGE INTEREST INCOME UNCERTAINTIES

Our rental and mortgage interest income revenues are believed by management to be secure. However, the majority of the income
of our lessees and borrowers is derived from the lessees’ participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Adverse changes in
these programs or the inability of our lessees and borrowers to participate in these programs would have a material adverse impact on
the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of our lessees and borrowers and their resultant ability to service their obli-
gations to us.

None of our lessees or borrowers are in bankraptcy, but the facilities that secure the FCC Notes were initially leased by FCC to
Integrated Health Systems, Inc. (IHS), which filed for bankruptcy protection February 2, 2000. By court order, the lease was terminated
in 2002. FCC immediately re-leased the properties to Schwartzberg Associates, a private, multi-state long-term care company. The abil-
ity of FCC to service the mortgage notes held by us is initially dependent on Schwartzberg Associates’ ability to make its lease pay-
ments to FCC or, in the absence of lease payments, FCC’s ability to operate or release these facilities. All FCC note payments are cur-
rent as of December 31, 2003.

Refer also to the above section “FCC Notes” for information concerning the short-term maturities of $30,628,000 of notes
receivable.

INCOME TAXES

We intend at all times to qualify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
Therefore, we will not be subject to federal income tax provided we distribute at least 90% of our annual REIT taxable income to our
stockholders and meet other requirements to continue to qualify as a REIT. Accordingly, no provision for federal income taxes has been
made in the consolidated financial statements. Our failure to continue to qualify under the applicable REIT qualification rules and reg-
ulations would have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
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NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

During August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS 144). SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 and supersedes certain exist-
ing accounting literature, which literature we currently use to evaluate the recoverability of our real estate properties. We have adopted
the provisions of SFAS 144 effective January 1, 2002. The implementation of SFAS 144 has not had a material effect on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2003 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS 150 establishes standards for classifying and measuring as liabilities certain
financial instruments that embody obligations of the issuer and have characteristics of both liabilities and equity. SFAS 150 is gener-
ally effective for NHR July 1, 2003. As originally issued, SFAS 150 would have required NHR to measure the minority interests in
NHR/OP, L.P. on the consolidated balance sheet at estimated fair value at the balance sheet date, with a charge or credit to income
(specifically, interest expense) for the change in carrying value during the period. In November 2003, the FASB deferred for an indef-
inite period the application of the classification and measurement guidance in SFAS 150 to noncontrolling interests in limited-life sub-
sidiaries (such as NHR/OP, L.P.). Measurement of the minority interests in NHR/OP, L.P. at estimated fair value at each balance sheet
date, if and when required, would result in significant volatility in NHR’s financial position and resulits of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” (FIN 45). FIN 45 requires that the guarantor recognize, at the inception of
certain guarantees, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing such guarantees. FIN 45 also requires additional
disclosure requirements about the guarantor’s obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. The initial recognition and meas-
urement provisions of this interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
Through December 31, 2003, adoption of FIN 45 has not had a material effect on NHR’s financial statements. The future effect of FIN
45 on NHR’s financial statements will depend on whether we enter into new or modify existing guarantees.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (FIN 46), which requires the
consolidation of variable interest entities. FIN 46 is generally applicable to NHR effective March 31, 2004. Disclosures are required
currently if the Company expects to consolidate any variable interest entities. The Company is currently evaluating the requirement to
consolidate any additional material entities as a result of FIN 46,

IMPACT OF INFLATION

Inflation may affect us in the future by changing the underlying value of our real estate or by impacting our cost of financing
operations.

Our revenues are primarily from long-term investments. Our leases with NHC require increases in rent income based on increases
in the revenues of the leased facilities.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

Our cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with a maturity of less than three months. Substantially all of our
mortgage and other notes receivable bear interest at fixed interest rates. As a result of the short-term nature of our cash instruments and
because the interest rates on our investment in notes receivable are fixed, a hypothetical 10% change in interest rates has no impact on
our future earnings and cash flows related to these instruments.

As of December 31, 2003, $46,097,000 of our long-term debt bears interest at floating interest rates. Because the interest rates of
these instruments are variable, a hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates would result in additional annual interest expense of
$148,000 and a 10% reduction in interest rates would result in annual interest expense declining $148,000. The remaining $1,723,000
of our long-term debt bears interest at fixed rates. A hypothetical 10% change in interest rates has no impact on our future earnings and
cash flows related to these instruments.

We currently do not use any derivative instruments to hedge interest rate or other risks. We do not use derivative instruments for
trading purposes. The future use of such instruments would be subject to strict approvals by our senior officers. Therefore, our expo-
sure related to such derivative instruments is not material to our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Equity Price Risk

We consider our investments in marketable securities as available for sale securities and unrealized gains and losses are recorded in
stockholders’ equity in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115. The investments in marketable securi-
ties are recorded at their fair market value based on quoted market prices. Thus, there is exposure to equity price risk, which is the poten-
tial change in fair value due to a change in quoted market prices. Hypothetically, a 10% increase in quoted market prices would result
in a related 10% increase in the fair value of our investments in marketable securities of a $560,000 and 10% reduction in quoted mar-
ket prices would result in a related 10% decrease in the fair value of our investments in marketable securities of approximately
$560,000.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The below report is a copy of the report previously issued by Arthur Andersen LLP in conjunction with its audits of National Health
Realty, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of, and for the three-year period ended, December 31, 2001. A copy of this report has been provided
as required by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountant’s Interpretation of Statement on Auditing Standards No. 58, Reports
on Audited Financial Statements, and guidance issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission in response to the indictment of
Arthur Andersen LLP in March 2002. During 2002, Arthur Andersen LLP substantially ceased operations, including providing audit-
ing and accounting services to public companies, and, as such, has not reissued this report. Additionally, Arthur Andersen LLP has not
consented to the use of this audit report. Accordingly, limitations may exist on (a) investor’s rights to sue Arthur Andersen LLP under
Section 11 of the Securities Act for false and misleading financial statements, if any, and the effect, if any, on the due diligence defense
of directors and officers, and (b) investor’s legal rights to sue and recover damages from Arthur Andersen LLP for material misstate-
ments or omissions, if any, in any registration statements and related prospectuses that include, or incorporate by reference, financial
statements previously audited by Arthur Andersen LLP,

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To National Health Realty, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NATIONAL HEALTH REALTY, INC. (a Maryland corporation)
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash
flows for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated finan-
cial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
National Health Realty, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.

fotbn Pdowas 145

Nashville, Tennessee
January 15, 2002
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
To the Stockholders of National Health Realty, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of National Health Realty, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31,
2003 and 2002 and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years ended December
31, 2003 and 2002. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The consolidated statements of income, cash flows and stockholders’ equity
for the year ended December 31, 2001 were audited by other auditors who have ceased operations and whose report dated January 15,
2002 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the con-
solidated financial position of National Health Realty, Inc. and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the consolidated results

of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, in conformity with accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States.

é/vmt ¥ LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
January 23, 2004
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31 2003 2002
Assets
Real estate properties:
Land $ 19,504 $ 20,206
Buildings and improvements 147,767 153,761
167,271 173,967
Less accumulated depreciation (40,340) (35,004)
Real estate properties, net 126,931 138,963
Mortgage and other notes receivable 44,595 65,562
Interest and rent receivable 403 459
Cash and cash equivalents 4,982 5,696
Marketable securities 5,598 ' 3,618
Deferred costs and other assets 369 643
Total Assets $ 182,878 $ 214,941
Liabilities
Debt $ 47,820 $ 79,488
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries 14,174 14,485
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 1,311 1,074
Accrued interest 10 10
Dividends payable 4,723 3,182
Distributions payable to partners 598 404
Deposit on real estate properties sold — 1,822
Total Liabilities 68,636 100,465

Commitments, contingencies and guarantees

Stockholders’ Equity
Cumulative convertible preferred stock,
$.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares
authorized; none issued and outstanding —_ —
Common stock, $.01 par value;
75,000,000 shares authorized; 9,590,588 and

9,570,323 shares, respectively, issued and outstanding 96 96
Capital in excess of par value of common stock 135,536 135,324
Cumulative net income 54,206 42,361
Cumulative dividends - (77,711) (63,440)
Unrealized gains on marketable securities 2,115 135

Total Stockholders’ Equity ' 114,242 114,476

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 182,878 $ 214,941

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31 2003 2002 2001
Revenues:
Rental income $ 17,088 $ 16,822 $ 16,385
Mortgage interest income 6,271 7,727 8,176
Gain on sale of real estate 1,149 — —
Investment interest and other income 447 224 90
24,955 24,773 24,651
Expenses:
Interest 3,993 3,325 6,083
Depreciation of real estate 6,322 6,785 7,393
Amortization of loan costs 473 262 49
Realty and loan losses — 4,020 268
General and administrative 824 807 854
11,612 15,199 14,647
Income before minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries 13,343 9,574 10,004
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries 1,498 1,076 1,127
Net income $ 11,845 $ 8,498 3 8,877
Net income per common share:
Basic $ 1.24 $ .89 $ 0.93
Diluted $ 1.21 $ .87 $ 0.92
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 9,575,546 9,570,323 9,570,323
Diluted 9,757,238 9,770,730 9,697,116

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31 2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 11,845 $ 8,498 $ 8,877
Depreciation of real estate 6,322 6,785 7,393
Gain on sale of real estate (1,149) —_— —_
Realty and loan losses — 4,020 —
Amortization and write-off of loan costs 473 262 49
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries 1,498 1,076 1,127
(Increase) decrease in interest and rent receivable 56 (36) 102
(Increase) decrease in other assets (199) 101 (209)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 237 93 88
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 19,083 $ 20,799 § 17427
Cash flows from investing activities:
Sale (purchase) of real estate properties, net $ 27 $ — $ (46)
Increase in deposit on real estate properties sold 1,270 1,324 498
Investment in mortgage notes receivable _ — (650)
Collection and sale of mortgage notes receivable 24,707 14,224 3,634
Purchase of marketable securities —_ (3,483) —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $ 26,004 $ 12,065 $ 3,436
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from debt 14,922 15,717 —
Payments on debt (46,590) (32,543) (4,614)
Financing costs paid — (432) —
Dividends paid to stockholders (12,730) (12,728) (12,728)
Distributions paid to minority partners (1,615) (1,618) (1,618)
Issuance of common shares $ 212 $ — $ —
Net cash used in financing activities $ (45,801) $ (31,604) $ (18,960)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (714) 1,260 1,903
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year . 5,696 4,436 2,533
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 4,982 $ 5,696 $ 4,436

Supplemental Information:
Cash payments for interest expense $ 3,993 3 3,367 $ 6,127

During 2003, NHR recognized the sale of property in exchange
for a mortgage note receivable:

Mortgage notes receivable 3,740 — —
Deposit on real estate sold 3,092 — —
Accumulated depreciation 986 — —
Land (700) — —
Building and improvements (5,969) —_ —
Gain on sale of real estate (1,149) — —

$ — $ — $ —

During 2001 and 2000, NHR acquired real estate properties
in exchange for its rights under mortgage notes receivable:

Mortgage and other notes receivable $ —_ $ — $ (1,630
Land — — —
Buildings and improvements — — 1,630

$ — $ — 3 —

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock

Shares Amount

Common Stock

Shares

Amount

Balance at December 31, 2000 — $ —

9,570,323

$

96

Net income — —
Dividends to common shareholders
($1.33 per share) — _

Balance at December 31, 2001 —_ —

9,570,323

96

Net income — —
Unrealized gains on marketable

securities — —
Total comprehensive income
Dividends to common shareholders

($1.33 per share) — —

Balance at December 31, 2002 — —

9,570,323

Net income — —
Unrealized gains on marketable

securities — —
Total comprehensive income
Shares sold — —
Dividends to common shareholders

($1.49 per share) — —

20,265

Balance at December 31, 2003 — $ —

9,590,588

$

96

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Capital in Unrealized Total

Excess of Cumulative Cumulative Gains on Stockholders’
Par Value Net Income Dividends Marketable Securities Equity

$ 135,324 $ 24,986 $ (37,984) $ —_ $ 122,422
— 8,877 — _ 8,877

— — (12,728) —_ (12,728)
135,324 33,863 (50,712) —_ 118,571
—_ 8,498 — —_ 8,498

— — — 135 135

8,633

— — (12,728) — (12,728)
135,324 42,361 (63,440) 135 114,476
— 11,845 : — —_ 11,845

— —_ _— 1,980 1,980

13,825

212 — —_ — ) 212

_ — (14,271) — (14,271)

$ 135,536 $ 54,206 $ (77,711) $ 2,115 $ 114,242
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION

National Health Realty, Inc. (NHR) is a Maryland real estate investment trust (REIT) that was incorporated on September 26, 1997.
NHR/OP, L.P. is a Delaware limited partnership that is the operating entity of NHR. NHR owns an 88% limited partnership interest
and, through a qualified REIT subsidiary, a 1% general partnership interest in NHR/OP, L.P. NHR and NHR/OP, L.P. are collectively
referred to herein as “NHR”.

The majority of our revenue is derived from interest income on secured mortgage loans and from rent generated on leased proper-
ties involved in the long-term care industry.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NHR and its majority owned subsidiaries.
Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Real Estate Properties - We record properties at cost. Real property transferred from NHC was recorded at NHC’s net book value at
the date of transfer. We use the straight-line method of depreciation for buildings and improvements over their estimated remaining use-
ful lives of up to 40 years.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets” (SFAS 144), we evaluate the recoverability of the carrying values of our properties on a property by property basis. On
a quarterly basis, we review our properties for recoverability when events or circumstances, including significant physical changes in
the property, significant adverse changes in general economic conditions and significant deteriorations of the underlying cash flows of
the property, indicate that the carrying amount of the property may not be recoverable. The need to recognize an impairment is based
on estimated future cash flows from a property compared to the carrying value of that property. If recognition of an impairment is nec-
essary, it is measured as the amount by which the carrying value of the property exceeds the fair value of the property.

Mortgage and Other Notes Receivable - In accordance with Statement of Financial Accountant Standards No. 114, “Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - An Amendment of FASB Statements No. 5 and 15” (SFAS 114), NHR evaluates the carrying val-
ues of its mortgage and other notes receivable on an instrument by instrument basis. On a quarterly basis, NHR reviews its notes receiv-
able for recoverability when events or circumstances, including the non-receipt of principal and interest payments, significant deterio-
rations of the financial condition of the borrower and significant adverse changes in general economic conditions, indicate that the car-
rying amount of the note receivable may not be recoverable. If necessary, an impairment is measured as the amount by which the car-
rying amount exceeds the discounted cash flows expected to be received under the note receivable or, if foreclosure is probable, the fair
value of the collateral securing the note receivable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents consist of all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less.

Federal Income Taxes - We intend at all times to qualify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended. Therefore, we will not be subject to federal income tax provided we distribute at least 90% of our annual REIT
taxable income to our stockholders and meet other requirements to continue to qualify as a REIT. Accordingly, no provision for federal
income taxes has been made in the consolidated financial statements. Our failure to continue to qualify under the applicable REIT qual-
ification rules and regulations would have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

The primary difference between the tax basis and the reported amounts of our assets and liabilities is a higher tax basis than book
basis (by approximately $15,520,000) in our real estate properties.

Earnings and profits, which determine the taxability of dividends to stockholders, differ from net income reported for financial
reporting purposes due primarily to differences in the basis of assets and differences in the estimated useful lives used to compute depre-
ciation expense.

Concentration of Credit Risks - Our credit risks primarily relate to cash and cash equivalents and to the investments in mortgage and
other notes receivable and marketable securities. Cash and cash equivalents are primarily held in bank accounts and overnight invest-
ments. The investments in mortgage and other notes receivable relate primarily to secured loans with health care facilities as discussed
in Note 5. The investment in marketable securities is held in one investment as described in Note 6.

Our financial instruments, principally our investments in mortgage and other notes receivable, are subject to the possibility of loss
of the carrying values as a result of either the failure of other parties to perform according to their contractual obligations or changes in
market prices which may make the instruments less valuable. We obtain various collateral and other protective rights, and continually
monitor these rights, in order to reduce such possibilities of loss.
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Marketable Securities - NHR’s investments in marketable securities include available for sale securities. Unrealized gains and losses
on available for sale securities are recorded in stockholders’ equity in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” (SFAS 115).

NHR evaluates its marketable securities for other-than-temporary impairments consistent with the provisions of SFAS 115.
Deferred Costs - Costs incurred to acquire financings are amortized by the interest method over the term of the related debt.

Other Assets - Other assets include our $296,000 investment in Summerfield Development LLC (Summerfield), a real estate devel-
opment company. Summerfield is a related party of NHR, since certain members of NHR’s management and Board of Directors are
also members of Summerfield. We carry our investment in Summerfield at cost in the consolidated balance sheets.

Rental Income - We recognize rental income based on the terms of our operating leases. Under certain of our leases, we receive con-
tingent rent, which is based on the increase in revenues of a lessee over a base year or base quarter. We recognize contingent rent annu-
ally or quarterly, as applicable, when, based on the actual revenue of the lessee, receipt of such income is assured. We identify leased
real estate properties as nonperforming if a required payment is not received within 30 days of the date it is due. Qur policy related to
rental income on non-performing leased real estate properties is to recognize rental income in the period when the income is received.

Mortgage Interest Income - We recognize mortgage interest income based on the interest rates and principal amounts outstanding of
the mortgage notes receivable. We identify loans as nonperforming if a required payment is not received within 30 days of the date it
is due. Our policy related to mortgage interest income on nonperforming mortgage loans is to recognize mortgage interest income in
the period when the income is received.

Stock-Based Compensation - We account for stock-based compensation arrangements under the provisions of Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB 25) and related interpretations. We have adopted the dis-
closure-only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-based Compensation” (SFAS
123). As a result, no compensation cost has been recognized in the consolidated statements of income for our stock option plan. See
Note 10 for additional disclosures about our stock option plan.

Based on the number of options granted and the historical and expected future trends of factors affecting valuation of those options,
management believes that the additional compensation cost, as calculated in accordance with SFAS 123, has no effect on our earnings
per share.

Comprehensive Income - Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income” requires that
changes in the amounts of certain items, including gains and losses on certain securities, be shown in the consolidated financial state-
ments. We report our comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity. For the year ended December 31,
2001, our comprehensive income was equal to our net income.

New Accounting Pronouncements - In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 144. SFAS 144
addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and the accounting and reporting pro-
visions for the disposal of a segment of a business. SFAS 144 also broadens the scope of defining discontinued operations. NHR adopted
SFAS 144 on January 1, 2002. The adoption of SFAS 144 has not had a significant effect on our financial position, results or opera-
tions or cash flows.

In May 2003 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS 150 establishes standards for classifying and measuring as liabilities certain
financial instruments that embody obligations of the issuer and have characteristics of both liabilities and equity. SFAS 150 is gener-
ally effective for NHR July 1, 2003. As originally issued, SFAS 150 would have required NHR to measure the minority interests in
NHR/OP, L.P. on the consolidated balance sheet at estimated fair value at the balance sheet date, with a charge or credit to income
(specifically, interest expense) for the change in carrying value during the period. In November 2003, the FASB deferred for an indef-
inite period the application of the classification and measurement guidance in SFAS 150 to noncontrolling interests in limited-life sub-
sidiaries (such as NHR/OP, L.P.). Measurement of the minority interests in NHR/OP, L.P. at estimated fair value at each balance sheet
date, if and when required, would result in significant volatility in NHR’s financial position and results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” (FIN 45). FIN 45 requires that the guarantor recognize, at the inception of
certain guarantees, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing such guarantees. FIN 45 also requires additional
disclosure requirements about the guarantor’s obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. The initial recognition and meas-
urement provisions of this interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
Through December 31, 2003, adoption of FIN 45 has not had a material effect on NHR’s financial statements. The future effect of FIN
45 on NHR'’s financial statements will depend on whether we enter into new or modify existing guarantees.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (FIN 46), which requires the
consolidation of variable interest entities. FIN 46 is generally applicable to NHR effective March 31, 2004. Disclosures are required
currently if the Company expects to consolidate any variable interest entities. The Company is currently evaluating the requirement to
consolidate any additional material entities as a result of FIN 46.
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NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP WITH NATIONAL HEALTHCARE CORPORATION

Transfer of Assets - On December 31, 1997, we issued 8,237,423 shares of NHR common stock and 1,310,194 units of NHR/OP,
L.P. to NHC in exchange for certain assets including mortgage notes receivable (book value of $94,439,000) and the real property of
16 long-term care centers, six assisted living facilities and one retirement center (total book value of $144,615,000) and related liabil-
ities (total book value of $86,414,000). NHC simultaneously distributed the common stock of NHR and NHR/OP, L P. units to the NHC
unitholders.

Leases - Concurrent with NHC’s conveyance of the real property to NHR, NHR leased to NHC each of the facilities. Each lease is
for an initial term expiring December 31, 2007, with two additional five year renewal terms at the option of NHC, assuming no defaults.
We account for the leases as operating leases.

During the remaining initial term and each renewal term, NHC is obligated to pay NHR annual base rent on the facilities. In addi-
tion to base rent, in each quarter of each year after 1999, NHC is obligated to pay percentage rent to NHR equal to 3% of the amount
by which gross revenues of each NHR leased health care facility in such later quarter exceed the gross revenues of such health care
facility in the applicable quarter of 1999. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, we recognized $1,128,000, $805,000 and $425,000 of percent-
age rent from NHC. Each lease with NHR is a “triple net lease” under which NHC is responsible for paying all taxes, utilities, insur-
ance premium costs, repairs and other charges relating to the operation of the facilities. NHC is obligated at its expense to maintain ade-
quate insurance on the facilities’ assets. Total rental income from NHC (including the nine Florida health care facilities referred to
below) was $17,088,000, $16,822,000 and $16,385,000 during 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

On October 1, 2000, NHC terminated its individual leases on nine Florida long term care facilities. However, NHC remains obli-
gated under its master lease agreement and continues to remain obligated to make the lease payments to NHR on the nine Florida long
term care facilities. Also effective October 1, 2000, the facilities were leased by NHR under a five year term to nine separate limited
liability corporations, none of which are owned or operated by NHC. Lease payments to NHR from the new lessees offset NHC'’s lease
obligations pursuant to the master operating lease. Since October 1, 2000, the nine separate limited liability corporations have made all
required lease payments to NHR, and NHC has not been required to make any lease payments with respect to those nine properties.

NHC has a right of first refusal with us to purchase any of the properties transferred from NHC should we receive an offer from an
unrelated party during the term of the lease or up to 180 days after termination of the related lease.

At December 31, 2003, the approximate future minimum base rent commitments (which exciude percentage rents) to be received by
us on non-cancelable operating leases (including the nine Florida health care facilities referred to above) are as follows:

2004 $15,960,000
2005 15,960,000
2006 - 15,960,000
2007 15,960,000
Thereafter —

Tax Treatment of the Transfer - The transfer of assets was treated as a nontaxable exchange under Section 351 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended. For federal income tax purposes, no gain or loss was recognized by NHC or by its unitholders upon the
transfer of assets to NHR or upon the distribution of the shares of NHR. The tax basis of shares of NHR received by NHC unitholders
in the distribution was $16.54 per share for most unitholders.

Advisory Agreement - We have entered into an Advisory Agreement with NHC whereby services related to investment activities and
day-to-day management and operations are provided to us by NHC as Advisor. The Advisor is subject to the supervision of and poli-
cies established by our Board of Directors. The Advisory Agreement expired December 31, 2003 and thereafter is renewed from year
to year unless earlier terminated. Either party may terminate the Advisory Agreement at any time on 90 days written notice, and we
may terminate the Advisory Agreement for cause at any time.

For its services under the Advisory Agreement, NHC is entitled to annual compensation of the greater of 2% of our gross consoli-
dated revenues or the actual expenses incurred by NHC. During 2003, 2002, and 2001, our compensation to NHC under the Advisory
Agreement was $476,000, $493,000, and $504,000, respectively.

NHC is also the Advisor of National Health Investors, Inc. (NHI). Pursuant to our Advisory Agreement, we have agreed that as long
as NHC is obligated both under the NHR Advisory Agreement and the NHI Advisory Agreement, we will only do business with NHC
and will not compete with NHI. As a result, we are severely limited in our ability to grow and expand our business. Furthermore, we
will not seek additional third party investments to expand our investment portfolio.

Borrowing from NHC - As discussed in Note 5, effective December 31, 2003, NHR exercised its right to repurchase three mortgage
notes receivable from NHI. In order to exercise its repurchase right, on December 31, 2003, NHR borrowed $14,922,000 from NHC in
the form of a promissory note payable to NHC. The $14,922,000 promissory note payable to NHC bears interest at 30-day LIBOR plus
2.25% with a floor of 4.00% (4.00% at December 31, 2003). Interest is payable monthly with the principal amount due upon maturity
at December 31, 2005. The note payable to NHC is subordinated to NHR’s obligations under its bank debt.
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NOTE 4. REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES

The following table summarizes our real estate properties by type of facility and by state as of December 31, 2003:

Buildings,
Number Improvements &
of Construction Accumulated
Facility Type and State Facilities Land In Progress Depreciation
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
Long-Term Care Centers:
Florida 6 $ 5775 $ 40,820 $ 12,250
Missouri 1 123 3,728 1,163
South Carolina 7 6,145 36,215 . 11,569
Tennessee 2 874 11,474 2,513
Total Long-Term Care Centers 16 12,917 92,237 27,495
Assisted Living Facilities:
Alabama 1 268 5,468 1,769
Florida 3 3,414 21,698 6,202
Tennessee 2 836 13,434 2,932
Total Assisted Living Facilities 6 4,568 40,600 10,903
Independent Living Centers:
Tennessee 1 2,019 14,930 1,942
Total Independent Living Centers 1 2,019 14,930 1,942
Total 23 $ 19,504 $ 147,767 $ 40,340

Indiana Long-Term Care Centers

During 2000, we leased three Indiana long-term care centers to Health Services Management of Indiana, LLC (HSMI) under a mas-
ter lease. The lease was for an initial 12-month term with renewal options at HSMI’s option. We accounted for the lease as an operat-
ing lease. The lease also provided HSMI with an option to purchase the facilities.

Effective January 1, 2001, we sold all of the real estate and equipment of the three long-term health care centers under lease to HSMI.
Consideration for the sale and assumption of the $1,630,000 first mortgage and the properties was in the form of new mortgage notes
in the total amount of $12,029,000. As the result of our financing 100% of the sale through October 31, 2003, we accounted for this
transaction under the deposit method in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 66,
“Accounting for Sales of Real Estate” (SFAS 66). Consistent with the deposit method, we did not initially record the sale of the assets
and continued to record depreciation expense each period. Cash received from the buyer (which totaled $3,092,000 as of October 31,
2003) was reported as a deposit on real estate properties sold until the down payment and continuing investment criteria of SFAS 66
were met.

During 2002, we concluded that based on certain 2002 events and our resulting SFAS 144 impairment analyses, these real estate
properties required write-downs in the net book value of $4,288,000. Write-downs of $1,000,000 and $3,288,000 were recorded during
the first and fourth quarters of 2002, respectively.

Effective November 1, 2003, the initial and continuing investment criteria for SFAS 66 were met. Therefore, the sale of the real estate
properties was recognized, resulting in a gain on the sale of real estate of approximately $1,149,000. The sale of the assets resulted in
recording a mortgage note receivable of approximately $3,740,000.
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NOTE 5. MORTGAGE AND OTHER NOTES RECEIVABLE

The following is a summary of the terms and amounts of mortgage and other notes receivable at December 31, 2003:

_ Principal
Final Number of Amount
Payment Date Loans Payment Terms (in thousands)
2004-2006 10 Monthly payments from $2,000 to $71,000, which include
interest at 10.25% $21,217
2004-2016 7 Monthly payments from $2,000 to $53,000, which include
interest ranging from the prime rate plus 2% to 10.25% 14,937
2014 1 Monthly payments of $38,250, which include interest at 8.5% 4,420
2005 3 Monthly payments of $130,000 which include interest at 10.5% 3.875
2004-2016 2 Monthly payments of $5,000, which include
interest ranging at the prime rate plus 2% 146
$ 44,595

Florida Convalescent Centers, Inc.

Approximately $30,628,000 of the mortgage and other notes receivable is due from Florida Convalescent Centers, Inc. or affiliates
(FCC) of Sarasota, Florida. The notes bear interest at 10.25% and the majority of the notes mature October 31, 2004. Approximately
$21,982,000 of FCC notes were prepaid November 2, 2003. The proceeds from the prepayments were used to pay down our credit facil-
ity. The balance of the FCC notes may be prepaid without penalty. If repayment occurs, we will apply the proceeds against our bank
term loan. If not so used, we will attempt to reinvest the balance available. Our existing bank debt agreement requires a portion of the
prepayments to be used to reduce bank debt.

Effective July 31, 1999, the 14 FCC centers which secure our mortgage notes receivable were leased to Integrated Health Systems,
Inc. (IHS), which filed for bankruptcy protection on February 2, 2000. Pursuant to court order, the ITHS lease was terminated and the
FCC centers re-leased to Schwartzberg Associates, a private multi-state long-term care company, during the second quarter of 2002.
The ability of FCC to service the mortgage notes held by NHR is dependent on Schwartzberg Associates’ ability to make its lease pay-
ments to FCC. As of December 31, 2003, FCC has made all required payments to NHR under the terms of the note agreements.

Transfer of Notes Receivable to NHI

Effective December 31, 2002, we transferred three mortgage notes receivable secured by three long-term care facilities in Florida
with total principal balances outstanding and a total carrying amount of $15,717,000 to NHI at par. We received cash from NHI equal
to our carrying amount. As the result of certain repurchase and put options included in the transfer agreement, consistent with the pro-
visions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities” (SFAS 140), we accounted for the transfer of notes receivable to NHI as a borrowing rather than as a
sale of the notes. Effective December 31, 2003, NHR exercised its right to repurchase the notes at par for approximately $14,937,000
from NHI. Consequently, the borrowing from NHI is not recognized on our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2003. As
discussed in Note 3, NHR borrowed $14,922,000 from NHC in order to repurchase the notes from NHIL

NOTE 6. INVESTMENT IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES

On September 17, 2002, we purchased 225,000 shares of NHI common stock for approximately $3,483,000. At December 31, 2003,
the fair value of the shares is $5,598,000. This investment in marketable securities is classified as an investment in securities available for
sale. Unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities are recorded in stockholders’ equity in accordance with SFAS No. 115. We
recognize $383,000 and $158,000 of dividend income on our investments in NHI common stock during 2003 and 2002, respectively.

NOTE 7. DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

To meet the reporting requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, “Disclosures About Fair Value of
Financial Instruments”, we calculate the fair value of financial instruments using discounted cash flow techniques. At December 31,
2003 and 2002, there were no material differences between the carrying amounts and fair values of our financial instruments.

Page 26 National Health Realty, Inc.




NOTE 8. DEBT

Debt consists of the following:

Weighted Average Final Principal
(Dollar amounts in thousands) Interest Rate Maturities Amount
December 31 2003 2002
Term loan, principal and interest payable quarterly Variable,
4.1% 2004 $31,175 - $58,157
Borrowing from NHC, interest payable Variable,
monthly, principal due at maturity 4.0 2005 14,922 —
Borrowing from NHI, repaid in 2003 — —_ —_ - 15,717
Senior secured notes due to NHC, repaid in 2003 — — — 1,736
Senior secured notes due to NHC, principal and interest ‘
payable semiannually 8.4 2005 1,723 3,878
$ 47,820 $ 79,488

The aggregate principal maturities of all debt for the five years subsequent to December 31, 2003 are as follows:

2004 $ 32,036,000
2005 15,784,000
Thereafter —_

In December 2003 we negotiated a one-year extension of our bank term loan, which was scheduled to mature on December 31, 2003.
We plan to use proceeds from the repayment of the FCC mortgage notes receivable (most of which mature in 2004), cash from operat-
ing activities, and, if necessary, debt refinancings in order to satisfy the debt obligation in 2004. Although we believe that we will be
successful in retiring or refinancing our December 2004 debt obligation, no assurance can be given in this regard. Our cash flows from
operating activities will not be adequate to retire the entire debt obligation. The inability to retire or refinance our obligation prior to
December 31, 2004 would have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operation and cash flows.

Certain loan agreements require maintenance of specified operating ratios and stockholders’ equity by NHR. As of December 31,
2003, we have met all such covenants or obtained appropriate waivers.

During the fourth quarter of 2001, NHC, as the holder of certain promissory notes made by National Health Corporation (National)
and previously guaranteed in part by us, released our guarantee. Therefore, there is no longer any potential liability on our part as a
result of a default by National or NHC on any of their outstanding debt.

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES

At December 31, 1997, in order to protect our REIT status, certain NHC unitholders received limited partnership units of NHR/OP,
L.P. rather than shares of common stock of NHR. As a result of certain unitholders’ involuntary acceptance of NHR/OP, L.P. partner-
ship units to benefit all other unitholders, we have indemnified those certain unitholders for any tax consequence resulting from any
involuntary conversion of NHR/OP, L.P. partnership units into shares of NHR common stock. The indemnification expires at such time
as the NHR/OP, L.P. unitholders are in a position to voluntarily convert their partnership units into NHR common stock on a tax free
basis without violating applicable REIT requirements.

We believe that we have operated our business so as to quality as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Code of
1986, as amended (the “Code”) and we intend to continue to operate in such a manner, but no assurance can be given that we will be
able to qualify at all times. If we qualify as a REIT, we will generally not be subject to federal corporate income taxes on our net income
that is currently distributed to stockholders. This treatment substantially eliminates the “double taxation” (at the corporate and stock-
holder levels) that typically applies to corporate dividends. Our failure to continue to quality under the applicable REIT qualification
rules and regulations would cause use to owe state and federal income taxes and would have a material adverse impact on our finan-
cial position, results of operations and cash flows.

NHC HealthCare/Nashville, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of our investment advisor, NHC, is the operator of a long-term care
facility in Nashville, Tennessee which sustained extensive fire damage on September 25, 2003. NHC has reported there have been 16
patient deaths since the fire, an undetermined number of which may be related to the events of September 25, 2003, as well as other
personal injuries. NHR has no ownership or involvement in the damaged facility.
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Although NHR does not own the damaged facility, NHR currently owns or leases 14 facilities to NHC subsidiaries. The leases
require the operator to maintain replacement cost property and casualty insurance, including business interruption coverage, with NHR
being the loss payee. NHR is also an additional named insured on a professional and general liability policy issued by a subsidiary of
NHC. Under the terms of the leases, the operator is required to maintain limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and
$1,000,000 in the aggregate. NHR is advised that NHC’s current policy limits exceed these requirements. NHC and its subsidiaries are
the largest group of tenants of NHR and their potential liability from this incident and the impact, if any, on NHR cannot be determined
at this time.

NOTE 10. STOCK OPTION PLAN

Our stockholders have approved the 1997 Stock Option and Appreciation Rights Plan under which options to purchase shares of our
common stock are available for grant to our consultants, advisors, directors and employees at a price no less than the market value of
the stock on the date the option is granted. The vesting period and term of the options is six years. The following table summarizes
option activity:

Number Weighted Average

of Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding December 31, 2000 397,000 $842
Options granted 15,000 10.74
Outstanding December 31, 2001 412,000 8.51
Options granted 10,000 16.95
QOutstanding December 31, 2002 422.000 8.71
Options granted 15,000 14.80
Options exercised (25,000) 11.67
Outstanding December 31, 2003 412,000 8.75
Options exercisable 45,000 11.80

At December 31, 2003, 45,000 options outstanding are exercisable. Exercise prices on the options range from $6.50 to $16.95. The
weighted average contractual life of options outstanding at December 31, 2003 is 1.9 years. We have reserved 500,000 shares of com-
mon stock for issuance under the stock option plan. At December 31, 2003, 41,802 shares of common stock may be issued under the
stock option plan.

NOTE 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

We have calculated earnings per share in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, “Earnings per
Share” (SFAS 128). Basic earnings per share is based on net income as reported in the consolidated statements of income and the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share assumes the exercise of stock options into shares of NHR common stock using the treasury stock method. For
purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share, there is no adjustment to net income as reported in the consolidated statements of income.
NOTE 12. LIMITS ON COMMON STOCK OWNERSHIP

Our Articles of Incorporation limit the percentage of ownership that any person may have in our outstanding common stock to 9.8%
of the aggregate of the outstanding stock. This limit is necessary in order to reduce the possibility of our failing to meet the stock own-
ership requirements for REIT qualification under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

NOTE 13. COMMON STOCK DIVIDENDS

Actual and expected dividend payments to our common stockholders are characterized in the following manner for tax purposes in
2003:

Dividend Taxable as Non-taxable
Payment Ordinary Return of

Date Income Capital Totals
April 15, 2003 $ 325606 $ .006894 $ 3325
July 15, 2003 . .325606 006894 3325
October 15, 2003 .325606 .006894 3325
January 15, 2004 .485606 .006894 4925
$1.462424 $.027576 $1.4900
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SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA
(Unaudited, in thousands, except per share amount)

The following table sets forth selected quarterly financial data for the two most recent fiscal years.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2003
Net Revenues $ 6,046 $ 5934 $ 5930 $ 7,045
Net Income 2,741 2,599 2,636 3,869
Basic Earnings Per Share 29 27 28 40
Diluted Earnings Per Share .28 27 27 40
2002
Net Revenues $ 6,177 $ 6,125 $ 6283 $ 6,188
Net Income 2,137 2,815 3,143 403
Basic Earnings Per Share 22 29 33 05
Diluted Earnings Per Share 22 29 32 .04

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On July 1, 2002, the Board of Directors of National Health Realty, Inc. determined to dismiss its independent accountants, Arthur
Andersen LLP (“Andersen”) and appointed Ernst & Young LLP (“EY”) as its new independent accountants. The decision to change
accountants was approved by NHC’s Board of Directors upon the recommendation of its Audit Committee.

During the two year period ended December 31, 2001 and for the subsequent period through the date hereof, there were no dis-
agreements between NHR and Andersen on any matter of accounting principles of practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing
scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to Andersen’s satisfaction would have caused them to make reference to the
subject matter of the disagreement in connection with their reports. None of the reportable events described under Item 304(a)(1)(v) of
Regulation S-K occurred within the two year period ended December 31, 2001 and for the subsequent period through the date hereof.

The audit reports of Andersen on the consolidated financial statements of NHR and subsidiaries as of and for the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2001 did not contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor were they qualified or modified as
to uncertainty, audit scope, or accounting principles.

During NHR’s two year period ended December 31, 2001, and the subsequent period through the date hereof, NHR did not consult
with EY regarding any of the matters or events set forth in Item 304(a)(2)(i) and (ii) of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of December 31, 2003, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s man-
agement, including the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Principal Accounting Officer (“PAQ”™), of the effectiveness of the design
and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s management, including
the CEO and PAO, concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2003. There
have been no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
during the year ended or subsequent to December 31, 2003.

PART II1

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF REGISTRANT
Directors and Executive Officers

The Board of Directors is divided into three classes. Directors will hold office until the annual meeting for the year in which their
term expires and until their successor is elected and qualified. As each of their terms expire, the successor shall be elected to a three-year
term. A director may be removed from office for cause only. Officers serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors for a term of one
year. The following table sets forth the current directors and executive officers of NHR:

Current Term as Officer of NHR’s
Name Age Director Expires Predecessor Since
Robert G. Adams 57 2006 1985
W. Andrew Adams 7 58 2005 1973
Ernest G. Burgess, 111 64 2005 1975
Joseph M. Swanson 66 2004 —
Richard F. LaRoche, Jr. 58 — 1974
Donald K. Daniel 57 — 1985
Charlotte A. Swafford 56 — 1985
Kenneth D. DenBesten 51 — 1992
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W. Andrew Adams, Robert G. Adams, and Ernest G. Burgess are currently directors of National HealthCare Corporation. W. Andrew
Adams and Richard F. LaRoche are directors of National Health Investors, Inc. All executive officers serve in similar capacities with
NHC and NHIL

W. Andrew Adams is the President and a Director of the Company and has been the Chief Executive Officer of NHC since 1981,
and on its Board since 1974. He has extensive long-term health care experience and served as President of the National Council of
Health Centers, the trade association for multi-facility long-term health care companies. He is also the President and Chairman of the
Board of National HealthCare Corporation and National Health Investors, Inc., and he is Chairman of the Board of Assisted Living
Concepts, Inc. In addition, Mr. Adams serves on the Board of Directors of SunTrust Bank, Nashville. He has an M.B.A. degree from
Middle Tennessee State University. He is the brother of Robert G. Adams

Robert G. Adams is Senior Vice President and a Director of the Company and also has served NHC 27 years - 15 years as Senor
Vice President and 10 years on the Board of Directors. He is also Vice President of National Health Investors, Inc. and Chief Operating
Officer for NHC. He has a B.S. degree from Middle Tennessee State University. He is the brother of W. Andrew Adams.

Ernest G. Burgess, III (Director) served as Senior Vice President of Operations for NHC for 20 years before retiring in 1994. He also
serves on the Board of Directors and Audit Committee of NHC. He has an M.S. degree from the University of Tennessee. He also serves
on the Audit Committee of NHR, and is a member of both the Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee. Mr. Burgess is the brother-in-law by marriage to W. Andrew Adams.

Richard F. LaRoche is Secretary and General Counsel of the Company and was its Vice President until May 2002 when he retired
from active management positions. He also served in those positions for NHC since 1971. He has a law degree from Vanderbilt
University and an A.B. degree from Dartmouth College. Mr. LaRoche currently serves as a director, Secretary and General Counsel of
National Health Investors, Inc. and National HealthCare Corporation. He also serves as a director and Audit Committee member of Z-
Tel Technologies, Inc.

Joseph M. Swanson is an owner/manager of Swanson Development Company, a multi-county real estate development and leasing
company with approximately three million square feet of buildings and over 200 tenants. He is also the developer of over 800 acres of
commercial and residential property. Swanson is also the owner and president of a 70 year old manufacturing and distribution company.
He was a founding shareholder and director of First City Bank from 1986 through 1995, and since 1995 has served as a founding direc-
tor of Bank of Murfreesboro. Mr. Swanson is also a majority partner in a commercial contracting company and trustee of a commer-
cial real estate unitrust that owns real estate. He serves on the Audit Committee of NHR, and is a member of both the Compensation
Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

Donald K. Daniel (Vice President & Controller) joined NHC in 1977 as Controller and has served NHR in that capacity since 1998.
He received a B.A. degree from Harding University and an M.B.A. from the University of Texas. He is a certified public accountant.

Kenneth D. DenBesten (Vice President/Finance) has served NHC as Vice President/Finance since 1992, and has served NHR in that
capacity since 1998. From 1987 to 1992, he was employed by Physicians Health Care, most recently as Chief Operating Officer. From
1984 to 1986, he was employed by Health America Corporation as Treasurer, Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer.
Mr. DenBesten received a B.S. in business administration and an M.S. in Finance from the University of Arizona.

Charlotte A. Swafford (Treasurer) has been Treasurer of NHC since 1985, and has served NHR in that capacity since 1998. She
joined NHC in1973 and has served as Staff Accountant, Accounting Supervisor and Assistant Treasurer. She has a B.S. degree from
Tennessee Technological University.

Board Committees

The Board has constituted three committees -Audit, Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Governance. The Board believes
that one of its members (Mr. Swanson) is “independent” as defined by the Securities and Exchange commission (“SEC”) and American
Stock Exchange (“AMEX”) Rules. Additionally, the Board believes that Mr. Burgess is independent other than his relationship as
brother-in-law with Mr. W. A. Adams. Pursuant to AMEX Listing Rules, Mr. Burgess can remain on the Committees for two years,
although he cannot serve as Chairman of the Audit Committee. These two directors are the members of these committees. Additionally,
the Audit Committee believes that Mr. Burgess meets the SEC definition of “Audit Committee Financial Expert”. A third independent
board member will be nominated to replace the late Dr. Olin Williams on these committees in due course of time.

Investor Information

‘We maintain a worldwide web site at www.nationalhealthrealty.com. We publish to this web site our 10-Q’s, this 10-K, Form 8-K,
and press releases. We do not necessarily have these filed the same day as they are filed with the SEC or released to the public, but
rather have a policy of placing on the web site within two (2) business days of public release or SEC filing.

We also maintain the following documents on the web site, all of which we hereby incorporate herein by reference as though copied
verbatim:

» The NHR Code of Ethics and Standards of Conduct. This has been adopted for all employees, officers and directors of the Company.
The website will also disclose whether there have been any amendments or waivers to the Code of Ethics and Standards of conduct.
To date there have been none.

¢ Information on our “NHR ValuesLine”, which allows our staff and investors unrestricted access to our Corporate Compliance
Officer, executive officers and directors. The toll free number is 888-568-8578 and the communication may be incognito, if desired.
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* The NHR Restated Audit Committee Charter.
* The NHR Compensation Committee Charter.
« The NHR Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee Charter.

We will furnish, free of charge, a copy of any of the above documents to any interested investor upon receipt of a written request.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information about our Executive Officer and Board of Directors compensation, including stock option information, is set out in prose
and tabular detail in our definitive 2004 Proxy Statement which is accompanying this annual report on Form 10-K. This information is
incorporated by reference herein as though copied verbatim.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Number of NHR Shares Percentage of Total NHR
Names and Addresses of Beneficial Owners Beneficially Owned ® Shares ()

W. Andrew Adams, President
801 Mooreland Lane
Murfreesboro, TN 37128 1,131,281@ 11.8%

Joseph M. Swanson, Director
1188 Park Avenue
Murfreesboro, TN 37129 . 5,000 *

Robert G. Adams, Director and Senior Vice President
2217 Battleground Drive
Murfreesboro, TN 37129 485,309 5.1%

Emest G. Burgess, Director
7097 Franklin Road
Murfreesboro, TN 37129 160,000 1.7%

Richard F. LaRoche, Jr., Secretary and General Counsel
2103 Shannen Drive
Murfreesboro, TN 37130 372,714 3.9%

Donald K. Daniel, Vice President and Controller
1441 Haynes Drive
Murfreesboro, TN 37129 136,273 1.4%

Charlotte A. Swafford, Treasurer
915 Main Street
Murfreesboro, TN 37130 152,978 1.6%

Kenneth D. DenBesten, Vice President/Finance
1610 Wexford Drive
Murfreesboro, TN 37129 20,870 *

National Health Corporation
P. O. Box 1398
Murfreesboro, TN 37133 1,271,147@ 13.2%

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.
100 E. Pratt Street
Baltimore, MD 21202 819,300 8.5%

T. Rowe Price Small-Cap Value Funds, Inc.
100 E. Pratt Street

Baltimore, MD 21202 655,600 6.8%
State Street Bank & Trust Company

1776 Heritage Drive

No. Quincy, MA 02171 781,999 8.1%

Charles Schwab & Co,, Inc.
101 Montgomery Street

San Francisco, CA 94104 617,400 6.4%
Northern Trust Company

801 S. Canal C-IN

Chicago, IL 60607 569,879 5.9%

National Financial Services Corporation
200 Liberty Street
New York, NY 10281 530,414 5.5%

All Executive Officers and Directors of NHR 2,467,425 25.7%
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) Based on 9,590,588 shares outstanding at December 31, 2003. This ownership is for SEC purposes and not for purposes of real
estate investment trust regulations.

@ Included as shares beneficially owned are units of limited partnership interest in NHR/OP, L.P., our operating subsidiary. Although
these units cannot vote, they may be exchanged for shares of our common stock. This exchange has income tax consequences to the
holder, but not to us.

) Except as otherwise noted, all shares are owned beneficially with sole voting and investment power. Included in the amounts
above are 25,000 shares optioned to Burgess, as well as the options to W. A. Adams, Robert Adams, LaRoche, Daniel, DenBesten and
Swafford shown in Table A of the Proxy Statement. 571,754 shares attributed to W. A. Adams are actually units of limited partnership
interest in NHR/OP, L.P., which may be, under certain conditions, convertible into the common shares of NHR.

@) These securities are owned by various individuals and institutional investors which T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. (Price
Associates) serves as investment adviser with power to direct investments and/or sole power to vote the securities. For purposes of the
reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Price Associates is deemed to be a beneficial owner of such securities;
however, Price Associates expressly disclaims that it is, in fact, the beneficial owner of such securities.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The Assumed Liabilities

We were transferred the Healthcare Facilities subject to Assumed Liabilities of approximately $86.4 million at December 31, 1997.
We immediately repaid $71.6 million of the Assumed Liabilities with the proceeds of the NHR Credit Agreement in the amount of $75
million currently with AmSouth Bank as agent (principal balance outstanding at December 31, 2003 of $31,175,000). The balance of
the Assumed Liabilities includes original balances of $11.6 million of secured liabilities at fixed rates of 8.4% and 8.3%, which are
amortizing and will be paid in full by the end of the calendar year 2005 ($.7 million outstanding at December 31, 2003) and $3.2 mil-
lion of first mortgage revenue bonds which were purchased by us during 2002.

Although we are subject to the Assumed Liabilities, NHC has remained liable on certain unassumed portions of such debt in certain
percentages. We have agreed to indemnify NHC in respect of such continuing liability.

Of the Assumed Liabilities, approximately $11.6 million is represented by fixed rate first mortgage notes. We have obtained the con-
sent of the holders of these notes who have agreed that our liability is limited to 28% of the total outstanding mortgage notes in ques-
tion which are cross collateralized with other debt of NHC.

The Leases

The Master Lease Agreement with NHC provides that each Lease will be for an initial term expiring on December 31, 2007 (the
Initial Term). Provided that NHC is not then in default and gives at least six months notice, NHC has the option to renew all (but with-
out NHR's consent not less than all) of the Leases for a further five-year term expiring December 31, 2012 (the First Renewal Term);
and, provided that NHC is not then in default and gives at least six (6) months notice, NHC will have the option to renew all (but not
less than all) of the Leases for a term expiring December 31, 2017 (the Second Renewal Term).

During the Initial Term and both Renewal Terms (if applicable), NHC is obligated to pay us annual base rent for the respective
Healthcare Facilities in the respective amounts which upon completion of construction will initially aggregate $15,494,437.
Additionally, in each quarter of each year after 1999, NHC is obligated to pay percentage rent to us equal to 3% of the amount by which
gross revenues of each NHC leased health care facility in such later quarter exceed the gross revenues of such health care facility in the
applicable quarter of 1999.

The Master Agreement and the respective Leases will also obligate NHC to pay as “other additional rent” all real estate taxes, util-
ity charges and other charges imposed by third parties and which, if not paid, might become a levy or a lien upon the property. Base
rent, other additional rent and percentage rent are collectively referred to in the Master Agreement as “rent.”

Each Lease of a Healthcare Facility is what is commonly known as a “triple net lease” or “absolute net lease,” under which NHC is
responsible for paying all taxes, utilities, insurance premium costs, repairs (including to structural portions of the buildings constitut-
ing a part of the Healthcare Facilities) and other charges relating to the ownership and operation of the Healthcare Facilities. NHC is
also obligated to indemnify and hold harmless NHR from all claims resulting from the use and occupancy of each Healthcare Facility
by NHC or persons claiming under NHC and related activities, as well as to be fully responsible for, and to indemnify and hold NHR
harmless against, all costs related to any hazardous substances or materials on, or other environmental responsibility with respect to,
each Healthcare Facility.

The Master Agreement provides that if during the Lease Term or within six months after termination of such Term we receive a bona
fide third party offer to purchase any Healthcare Facility, then, prior to accepting such third party offer, we shall give NHC a 15-day
right of first refusal during which NHC may elect to purchase such Healthcare Facility on the same terms and conditions offered by the
third party. NHC also is granted a thirty day right of first refusal to lease an Healthcare Facility expiring six months after the expiration
of the Lease Term, on the same terms and conditions as offered by a third party, and accepted by us.

The Master Agreement described above applies only to the 24 Leases of the Healthcare Facilities. We and NHC anticipate that any
future leases of additional healthcare facilities between them will also become subject to the Master Agreement with appropriate mod-
ifications to fit the specific situation. The foregoing summary of certain of the provisions of the Master Agreement does not purport to
be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to all provisions of the Master Agreement.
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Although NHC has with our consent terminated nine of the leases, (all in Florida), we have re-leased each facility to third parties on
terms substantially to those above described. NHC remains obligated to its total rent payment owed pursuant to the Master Lease, but
receives credit for rent payments made by the new lessees on these nine properties.

Notes Payable to NHC

In December, 2003, we borrowed $14,924,000 from NHC. The proceeds of the loan were used to exercise our rights to purchase first
mortgage notes receivable previously sold to NHI which secure the note payable. The note payable requires monthly interest payments
at the 30 day LIBOR plus 2.25% with a floor of 4.00%. The entire principal is due December 31, 2005.

Advisory, Administrative Services and Facilities Agreement (the Advisory Agreement)
Services of Advisor

Under the Advisory Agreement, we engage NHC and NHC, as Advisor, agrees to use its best efforts (a) to present to us a continu-
ing and suitable investment program consistent with our investment policy; (b) to manage our day-to-day affairs and operations; and
(c) to provide administrative services and facilities appropriate for such management. In performing its obligations under the
Agreement, the Advisor is subject to the supervision of and policies established by our Board of Directors.

The specific duties of the Advisor under the Advisory Agreement include providing us with economic information and evaluations
with respect to additional investment opportunities, formulating an investment program and selecting potential investments for us and
recommending the terms thereof; and also evaluating and making recommendations as to the possible sale or other disposition of our
assets. The Advisor also is responsible for recommending selections of tenants, lenders, providers of professional and specialized serv-
ices and handling other managerial functions with respect to our properties. The Advisor is also obligated to provide office and clerical
facilities adequate for our operations, and to provide or obtain others to provide accounting, custodial, funds collection and payment,
stockholder and debenture holder communications, legal and other services necessary in connection with our operations. The Advisor
also undertakes to keep our Directors informed as to developments in the healthcare and REIT industries useful to our existing and
potential future business and investments.

The NHR Advisory Agreement also obligates the Advisor to handie or arrange for the handling of our financial and other records.
The Advisor is also required to keep its own records with respect to its services under the NHR Advisory Agreement. Annually, or as
more frequently requested by our Directors, the Advisor is obligated to report to our Directors its estimated costs in providing services
under the NHR Advisory Agreement and such information as the Advisor may reasonably obtain concerning the cost to other REITs
specializing in healthcare facility investments of administrative and advisory services comparable to those provided by the Advisor, in
order that our Directors may evaluate the performance of the Advisor and the efficiency of the arrangements provided to us under the
Advisory Agreement.

Restrictions on Investment Activities

The Advisory Agreement provides that prior to the earlier to occur of (i) the termination, for any reason, of the Advisory Agreement
or (ii) NHC ceasing to be actively engaged as the investment advisor for NHI, we will not (without the prior approval of NHI) transact
business with any party, person, company or firm other than NHC. It is the intent of the foregoing restriction that we will not be actively
or passively engaged in the pursuit of additional investment opportunities, but rather we will focus upon our capacities as landlord and
note holder of those certain assets, conveyed to us on December 31, 1997 by NHC.

Term

The Advisory Agreement is for a stated term expiring December 31, 2003 and thereafter from year to year unless earlier terminated.
Either party may terminate the Advisory Agreement at any time on 90 days written notice, and we may terminate the Advisory
Agreement for cause at any time.

Upon termination of the Advisory Agreement for any reason, the Advisor is obligated to deliver all our property that the Advisor is
holding in its capacity as Advisor, to render a full accounting to us and to cooperate with our Directors to provide an orderly manage-
ment transition. We are obligated, upon such termination, to pay NHC all compensation for services through the date of termination,
including any compensation the payment of which was deferred during the period the Advisory Agreement was in effect.

Compensation

For its services under the Advisory Agreement, NHC is entitled to annual compensation of the greater of (i) two percent (2%) of our
gross consolidated revenues calculated according to generally accepted accounting principles, or (ii) the actual expenses incurred by
NHC as outlined in the Advisory Agreement. The actual amounts paid in 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $476,000, $493,000 and $504,000,
respectively.
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Payment of Expenses

The Advisory Agreement provides that NHC shall pay all expenses incurred in performing its obligations thereunder, without regard
to the amount of compensation received under the Advisory Agreement. Expenses specifically listed as expenses to be borne by NHC
without reimbursement include: the cost of accounting, statistical or bookkeeping equipment necessary for the maintenance of our
books and records; employment expenses of the officers and directors and personnel of NHC and all expenses, including travel
expenses, of NHC incidental to the investigation and acquisition of properties for us prior to the time our Directors definitively decide
to acquire the property or to have NHC continue with the acquisition process, whether the property is acquired or not, and after our
Directors definitively decide to dispose of a property; advertising and promotional expenses incurred in seeking and disposing of invest-
ments for us; rent, telephone, utilities, office furniture and furnishings and other office expenses incurred by or allocable to NHC for
its own benefit and account regardless of whether incurred or used in connection with rendering the services to us provided for in the
NHR Advisory Agreement; all miscellaneous administrative and other expenses of NHC, whether or not relating to the performance by
NHC of its functions under the NHR Advisory Agreement; fees and expenses paid to independent contractors, appraisers, consultants,
attorneys, managers and other agents retained by or on our behalf and expenses directly connected with the acquisition, financing, refi-
nancing, disposition and ownership of real estate interests or of other property (including insurance premiums, legal services, broker-
age and sales commissions, maintenance, repair and improvement of property); insurance as required by our Directors (including our
Directors’ liability insurance); expenses connected with payments of dividends or distributions in cash or any other form made or caused
to be made by our Directors to REIT shareholders and expenses connected with payments of interest to holders of our debentures; all
expenses connected with communication to holders of our securities and the other bookkeeping and clerical work necessary in main-
taining relations with holders of securities, including the cost of printing and mailing certificates for securities and proxy solicitation
materials and reports to holders of our securities; transfer agent’s, registrar’s, dividend disbursing agent’s, dividend reinvestment plan
agent’s and indenture trustee’s fees and charges. The NHR Advisory Agreement also confirms that NHC shall pay all costs and expenses
which it is obligated to pay as tenant under any lease of healthcare facilities from us.

The NHR Advisory Agreement also confirms that NHC is responsible for all our legal and auditing fees and expenses and legal,
auditing accounting, underwriting, brokerage, listing, registration and other fees and printing, engraving and other expenses and taxes
incurred in connection with our organization, but such expenses incurred after January 1, 1998 for the issuance, distribution, transfer,
registration and listing of our shares shall remain our obligation.

The NHR Advisory Agreement provides that, except as NHC may have responsibility for such costs as tenant under the lease of any
property from us, we are responsible to pay our own expenses of the following types: dividends, the cost of borrowed money; taxes on
income and taxes and assessments on real property and all other taxes applicable to us including, without limitation, franchise and
excise fees; except as assumed by NHC, all ordinary and necessary expenses incurred with respect to and allocable to our prudent oper-
ation and business including, without limitation, any fees, salaries and other employment costs, taxes and expenses paid to our
Directors, officers and employees who are not also employees of NHC.

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of the Company’s Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls. At December 31, 2003, an evaluation was performed
under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and
Principal Accounting Officer (“PAQO”), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and pro-
cedures.

CEO and PAO Certifications. Appearing as Exhibit 31 of this Annual Report are the Certifications of the CEO and PAO as required
in accord with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the Section 302 Certification). This section of the Annual Report which
you are currently reading is the information concerning the Controls Evaluation referred to in the Section 302 Certifications and this
information should be read in conjunction with the Section 302 Certifications for a more complete understanding of the topics pre-
sented.

Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls. Disclosure Controls are procedures that are designed with the objection of ensuring
that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act), such as this
Annual Report, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s (SEC) rules and forms. Disclosure Controls are also designed with the objective of ensuring that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including the CEO and PAQ, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. Internal Controls are procedures which are designed with the objective of providing reasonable assurance that (1)
our transactions are properly authorized; (2) our assets are safeguarded against unauthorized or improper use; and (3) our transactions
are properly recorded and reported, all to permit the preparation of our financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.
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Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls. The Company’s management, including the CEO and PAO, does not expect that our
Disclosure Controls or our Internal Controls will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of
a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their
costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all con-
trol issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that
judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simply error or mistake. Additionally, controls
can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the
control. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and
there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, con-
trol may become inadequate because of changes in condition, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteri-
orate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected.

Scope of the Controls Evaluation. Among other matters, we sought in our evaluation to determine whether there were any “sig-
nificant deficiencies” or “material weaknesses” in the Company’s Internal Controls, or whether the company had identified any acts of
fraud involving personnel who have a significant role in the Company’s Internal Controls. This information was important both for the
Controls Evaluation generally and because items 5 and 6 in the Section 302 Certifications of the CEO and PAO require that the CEO
and PAO disclose that information to our Board’s Audit Committee and to our independent auditors and to report on related matters in
this section of the Annual Report. In the professional auditing literature, “significant deficiencies” are referred to as “reportable condi-
tions”; these are control issues that could have a significant adverse effect on the ability to record, process, summarize and report finan-
cial data in the financial statements. A “material weakness” is defined in the auditing literature as a particularly serious reportable con-
dition where the internal control does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud may occur
in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We also sought to deal with other controls matters in the Controls Evaluation,
and in each case if a problem was identified, we considered what revision, improvement and/or correction to make in accord with our
on-going procedures.

In accord with SEC requirements, the CEO and PAQ note that, since the date of the Controls Evaluation to the date of the Annual
Report, there have been no significant changes in Internal Controls or in other factors that could significantly affect Internal Controls,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Conclusions. Based upon the Controls Evaluation, our CEO and PAO have concluded that, subject to the limitations noted above,
our Disclosure Controls are effective to ensure that material information relating to National Health Realty, Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries is made known to management, including the CEO and PAO, particularly during the period when our periodic reports are
being prepared, and that our Internal Controls are effective to provide reasonable assurance that our financial statements are fairly pre-
sented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

ITEM 15. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information regarding Principal Accounting Fees and Services is set out in detail in our definitive 2004 Proxy Statement which is
accompanying this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This information is incorporated by reference herein as though copied verbatim.

PART IV

ITEM 16. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
a) (1) Financial Statements:
The Financial Statements are included in Item & and are filed as part of this report.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

The Financial Statement Schedules and Reports of Independent Public Accountants and Independent Auditors on Financial
Statement Schedules are listed in Exhibit 13.

(3) Exhibits:
Reference is made to the Exhibit Index of this Form 10-K Annual Report.
b) Reports on Form §-K:
Form 8-K filed December 11, 2003 regarding fourth quarter dividend announcement.

Form 8-K filed February 17, 2004 regarding year end earnings release.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of Murfreesboro, State of Tennessee, on the 20th
day of February, 2004,

NATIONAL HEALTH REALTY, INC.

BY:/s/ W. Andrew Adams
W. Andrew Adams
President and Director
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed on the dates indicated by the
following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ W. Andrew Adams President and Director February 20, 2004
W. Andrew Adams Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Donald K. Daniel Vice President and Controller February 20, 2004
Donald K. Daniel Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ Robert G. Adams
Robert G. Adams Director February 20, 2004

s/ Ernest G. Burgess, IIT
Emest G. Burgess, IIT Director February 20, 2004

/s/ Joseph M. Swanson
Joseph M. Swanson Director February 20, 2004
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Plan of Restructure (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s registration statement

No. 333-37173 on Form S-4).

22 Agreement of Merger (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Registrant’s registration statement
No. 333-37173 on Form S-4).

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of National Health Realty, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the

Registrant’s registration statement No. 333-37173 on Form S-4).

32 Bylaws of National Health Realty, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s
registration statement No. 333-37173 on Form S-4).

33 Limited Partnership Agreement of NHR/OP, L.P.(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Registrant’s
registration statement No. 333-37173 on Form S-4).

10.1 Master Agreement of Lease effective as of January 1, 1998 by and among National Health Realty, Inc.,
NHR/OP, L.P. and National HealthCare Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s registration statement No. 333-37173 on Form S-4).

10.2 Advisory, Administrative Services and Facilities Agreement effective as of January 1, 1998 between National
Health Realty, Inc., NHR/OP, L.P. and National HealthCare Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s registration statement No. 333-37173 on Form S-4)

10.3.2 Form of National Health Realty, Inc. 1997 Stock Option and Stock Appreciation Rights Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3.2 to the Registrant’s registration statement No. 333-37173 on Form S-4)

13 Financial Statement Schedules

16 Letter Regarding Changes in Certifying Accountant
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23 Consent of Independent Auditors

31 Section 302 CEQ/CFOQ Certification

32 Section 906 CEQ/CFQ Certification

EXHIBIT 13
NATIONAL HEALTH REALTY, INC.
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Report of Independent Public Accountants on Financial Statement Schedules
Report of Independent Auditors on Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule III  Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

Schedule IV Mortgage Loans on Real Estate

All other schedules are not submitted because they are not applicable or not required or because the required information is included
in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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EXHIBIT 31
CERTIFICATION

I, W. Andrew Adams, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of National Health Realty, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all mate-

rial respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
annual report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finan-
cial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the regis-
trant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equiva-
lent function);

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial informa-
tion; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the regis-
trant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 20, 2004

W. Andrew Adams
Chairman and President
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31
CERTIFICATION

I, Donald K. Daniel, certify that:

L.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of National Health Realty, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all mate-

rial respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finan-
cial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the regis-
trant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equiva-
lent function);

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial informa-
tion; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the regis-
trant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 20, 2004

)l Sa X

Donald K. Daniel
Vice President and Controller
Principal Accounting Officer
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EXHIBIT 32
CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K OF
NATIONAL HEALTH REALTY, INC.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

The undersigned hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the undersigned’s best
knowledge and belief, the Annual Report on Form 10-K for National Health Realty, Inc. ("Issuer") for the period ending December 31,
2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"):

(a) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Issuer.

This Certification accompanies the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Issuer for the annual period ended December 31, 2003.
This Certification is executed as of February 20, 2004.

WAL 2es Adans

W. Andrew Adams
Chief Executive Officer

el S X

Donald K. Daniel
Principal Accounting Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to National Health Realty, Inc. and will be
retained by National Health Investors, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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National Health Realty, Inc. Board of Directors from left to right: Ernest Burgess,

Robert Adams, Andrew Adams, Joseph Swanson and Richard F. LaRoche, Secretary

and General Counsel.

Board of Directors and Executive Officers

W. Andrew Adams, President,
also serves as Chairman of the Board
of Directors of National HealthCare
Corporation and National Health
Investors, Inc.

Robert G. Adams also serves on
the Board of Directors of National
HealthCare Corporation.

A Tribute to Dr. Williams

This annual report is dedicated to
Dr. Olin O. Williams, who died
suddenly in 2003. Dr. Williams was
a founding member of the National
Health Realty, Inc. Board of
Directors. Dr. Williams was a
physician in private practice in
Tennessee for more than 30 years.
Dr. Williams was also a founding
board member of our long-term
health care advisor, National
HealthCare Corporation. His medical
expertise, business savvy, common

Ernest G. Burgess serves as
chairman of NHR’s audit committee
and is on the Board of Directors of
National HealthCare Corporation.

Joseph S. Swanson serves on
NHR’s audit committee and is on the
Board of Directors of Bank of
Murfreesboro.

sense, positive outlook and jovial
personality will be greatly missed by
all his colleagues at NHR and NHC.

Stockholder Information
National Health Realty, Inc.

100 Vine Street

Murfreesboro, Tennessee 37130

Holdings Inquiries

For specific information related to
stockholders’ records, such as
changes of address, transfers of
ownership, or replacement of lost
checks or stock certificates, please
write directly to our transfer agent:
SunTrust Bank, Stock Transfer
Department, P.O. Box 4625,
Atlanta, Georgia, 30302 or
telephone 1-800-568-3476.

Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
The Annual Stockholders” meeting
will be at National Health Realty,
Inc.’s corporate offices on 100 Vine
Street in Murfreesboro, Tennessee
at 5 p.m. Central Time on

April 20, 2004.

Form 10-K Report or Annual
Report

A copy of National Health Realty
Inc.’s Form 10-K Report or Annual
Report for fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission
is available without charge by writing
to NHR’s offices at the address listed
above.

Quarterly Earnings Results

In order to provide quarterly results
and other materials of interest to our
stockholders in a timely and cost-
effective manner, we have a web site:
www.nationalhealthrealty.com. To
have material mailed to you, dial
1-800-844-4642.

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP

424 Church Street

Nashville, Tennessee 37219
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